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Our journey
easyHotel is an AIM-listed super budget hotel chain. Founded in 2004 by
Sir Stelios Haji-Ioannou, easyHotel was established on the core principle
that travel should be for the many, not the few.
The business was admitted to the London Alternative Investment Market in
June 2014. In recent years the brand has built significant momentum against
its ambitious growth strategy, with a strong development pipeline across key
international cities and a busy opening programme. Nine hotels have opened
in the last financial year alone.
Today, the easyHotel network includes 34 hotels, covering 28 cities and
ten countries. Every one of our hotels is based in a prime location – a great base
offering great value and fulfilling our mission of making “being there possible
for everyone”.
easyHotel is for people who believe that life is for living. The type of person
who wants to make the most of every moment. We make it simple for our
customers to do what they want to do, when they want to do it, whether that’s
exploring a city on a mini-break, going to a cup final, seeing their favourite
band, spending time with friends and family, getting to an important business
meeting, or just chillaxing!
Our business model may be simple but we are relentlessly innovative and
ambitious. We listen closely to our customers. Our rooms are carefully designed
to meet their needs and offer excellent value. We don’t scrimp on service in our
hotels. Our staff are friendly, accommodating and knowledgeable and go
out of their way to make our guests’ stays comfortable.
ir.easyhotel.com
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Highlights

“Nothing is stronger than an
idea whose time has come.”
Victor Hugo
Business highlights
• Owned hotels Revpar was up 11.4% with the Group’s owned hotels
continuing to deliver market outperformance for the third consecutive year.
• Like-for-like revenue for franchised hotels increased by 12.1%.
• Nine new hotels opened during the year, totalling 907 rooms, and are
trading well; supporting improvement in combined occupancy to 82.4%
(2017: 79.8%) and ADR of £51.3 (2017: £47.8).
• First owned hotel in Continental Europe opened in September – our flagship
easyHotel Barcelona (204 rooms).
• A further franchised hotel in Lisbon has opened since the year end bringing
the total portfolio to 34 hotels and 3,169 rooms across 28 cities.
• Adjusted EBITDA increased by 28.6%.
• Adjusted EBITDAR margin increased by 2.1%pts to 29.6% (2017: 27.5%).

Total system sales*

£37.3m
21.3

29.7

37.3

2016

2017

2018

Adjusted EBITDA**

£3.0m
1.5

2.3

3.0

2016

2017

2018

• Cash generated from operations increased to £2.65m (2017: £2.22m).
• The asset backed balance sheet has strengthened with net assets rising
to £120m (2017: £70.2m).
Post-year-end developments
• 80 Old Street shuts from 3 December 2018 and will reopen as
an 89-bedroom hotel and 15,500 sq ft of office accommodation
in the second half of 2019.
• A central freehold site in Bristol has been acquired to potentially develop
a 145-bedroom freehold easyHotel; subject to planning permission.
• Planning permission has been granted for the development of a new
purpose-built 180-room hotel in Oxford, on a 25-year lease.
• A new 154-bedroom franchised hotel will be developed at Amsterdam
Schiphol Airport, the main international airport in the Netherlands.

Total revenue

£11.3m
6.0

8.4

11.3

2016

2017

2018

Earnings per share***

0.5p
1.4

0.7

0.5

2016

2017

2018

*	Total system sales is a non-statutory measure and
represents the full amount that the customer pays for
our owned and franchised hotels, including initial
sign-on fees paid by franchisees to the Company.
**	Adjusted EBITDA is a non-statutory measure
that represents earnings before interest, taxation,
depreciation and amortisation adjusted for
pre-opening costs related to the development
of hotels, organisational restructuring costs, share
based payments and other adjusting items.
***	Impact of enlarged share base, from placing
of 45m ordinary shares in March 2018.
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easyHotel at a glance

easyHotel plc

is the owner, developer,
operator and franchisor
of branded hotels.
Its strategy is to target the super budget
segment of the hotel industry by developing
and marketing “clean, comfortable, stylish
and safe” hotel rooms to its customers.

What we do

How we do it

Our mission is to make “being there” accessible
for everyone. easyHotel is for people who believe
that life is for living. The type of person who lives
for experiences and wants to make the most of every
moment. They want to be located right in the heart
of the action. They expect a great bed, well-trained,
friendly staff, a good shower and well-designed rooms.

We use a combination of owned and franchised hotels.

We aim to provide a great place for good night’s
sleep, in a great location, at a great price.
Nothing more and nothing less!

Franchised hotels build our brand without the
need for capital investment. We intend to open them
throughout Europe and the Middle East. Our owned
hotels are usually freehold. Together, our owned and
franchised hotels contribute towards the Group’s
ROCE target of 2019. We will open them in the UK,
France, Germany, Spain and Ireland.
easyHotel has an estate of 34 hotels, with 3,169 rooms,
comprising ten owned and leased hotels (1,130 rooms)
and 24 franchised hotels (2,039 rooms). Looking
forward, the Group has a pipeline of nine owned
hotels and twelve franchised hotels being constructed
or awaiting planning permission.
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34

HOTELS

28
CITIES

10

COUNTRIES
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Chairman’s statement

Acceleration of proven
business model
Our first owned hotel in mainland Europe
was opened in Barcelona in September 2018.
This flagship hotel demonstrates the quality
of our design. The success of our new brand
standards is also reflected in strong trading at
other hotels opened or refurbished in the period.
Our franchised network has also been extended,
with new hotels opened by our partners in Belfast,
Reading, Scheveningen Beach and Maastricht.
Through our combined network, the easyHotel
brand is now represented by 34 hotels in 28 cities
and we expect to build further upon this success
in 2019. We have announced seven new owned
hotels planned for Bristol, Milton Keynes, Cardiff,
Chester, Cambridge, Dublin and Blackpool
together with seven new franchised hotels across
Switzerland, Spain and the Netherlands.

SUMMARY
• Trading in line with Board expectations,
with strong performance a consistent
feature of new and refurbished hotels
Reflecting progress towards maturity
in the UK, a parallel acquisition strategy
developed for Europe
• Growth strategy sustained
by disciplined approach to site
selection and brand standards
I am delighted to report that easyHotel
has continued making excellent progress
with its strategy for growth. Like for like revenue
growth out-performed our competitive set and
performance at our new and refurbished hotels
clearly demonstrates the value of our model.
Following our successful share placing and
negotiations to extend our bank facilities, we
are well placed to leverage the full potential
of our strong development pipeline.

Strategy

Our strategy is underpinned by a clear vision
of the key locations where we want to establish
an owned hotel. To date these locations have
predominantly been in the UK but exciting
opportunities also exist elsewhere in Europe.
To this end we are actively pursuing an expansion
policy in selected countries in mainland Europe,
financed through the fundraising activities we
undertook this year.

Our sleep easy promise – that easyHotel customers
will enjoy a good night’s sleep at an easy price
– is the cornerstone of our brand. easyHotel has
always offered clean, comfortable and safe
facilities but, with our new look designs, customers
can now benefit from even higher standards.
We have already refurbished two of our three
legacy hotels – Croydon and Glasgow – and the
post-refurbishment trading of these two assets
provides the Board with confidence that the
investment in refreshing our older hotels has
been well made.
We now intend to incorporate similar
improvements into our Old Street hotel, which
was temporarily closed on 3 December 2018 for
extensive works to be carried out. To maximise
value, Old Street will incorporate, alongside
an 89-bedroom hotel, new self-contained
15,500 sq. ft office facilities which will be let
to maximise revenues. Those revenues are
expected to offset the costs of our new head
office which provides an excellent workplace
for our talented team.

Dividend

An interim dividend of 0.07p per ordinary
share was paid on the enlarged share capital,
maintaining the aggregate distribution at an
equivalent amount to that paid in 2017.
We are now pleased to recommend a final
dividend of 0.15p per share. Subject to shareholder
approval at our AGM, this dividend will be paid
on 15 February 2019 to shareholders on the
register on 25 January 2019.

Board and management team

The Board would like to thank all members of
easyHotel’s team for their outstanding contribution.
Pleasingly, our ShareSave Plan, launched in 2017,

attracted even greater participation in 2018
meaning more colleagues can now share in the
success they are working so hard to achieve for
this business.
I am fortunate to lead a talented and dedicated
Board. Chief Executive Officer, Guy Parsons,
continues to do an exceptional job in steering
this business. We have recently been pleased
to announce the appointment of a new Chief
Financial Officer, Gary Burton, to succeed
Marc Vieilledent who will now lead our important
European development strategy. As we welcome
Gary to the business, it is appropriate to take
this opportunity to thank Marc, on behalf of the
whole Board, for all that he has done to contribute
to our success so far. We have no doubt that he
will bring energy and skill to driving our European
strategy. The appointment of Harm Meijer,
Managing Director of ICAMAP, as an additional
Non-Executive Director earlier in the year
is enhancing our understanding of our key
shareholder’s views and priorities but his wider
contribution to the Board’s work is also equally
valued. I would also like to thank my fellow
independent Non-Executive Director, Scott
Christie, for the qualities and commitment he
brings to the governance of the business and
for his skilled and thoughtful chairmanship
of our Audit and Remuneration Committees.

Outlook

Looking ahead, ongoing political and
economic uncertainty is likely to affect hotel
demand in the UK over the next 12 months.
By contrast, the hotel market was much stronger
across Europe during 2018 with Revpar growth
balanced between occupancy and rate,
suggesting growth should continue into 2019,
and beyond. The Board remains confident that
the easyHotel brand will continue to outperform
the hotel sector as consumers seek out the best
value for money.
We have continued to strengthen our business,
its brand and resources. Early trading at our
new and refurbished hotels encourages us to
believe that our business model and strategy
are sound and that scope to expand and develop
our offering both in the UK and Europe is
considerable. The Board’s long-term strategy
for growth is ambitious but, with our experienced
management team and strong development
pipeline, the outlook to achieve that growth
is both realistic and exciting.

Jonathan Lane OBE

Non-Executive Chairman
5 December 2018
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Exciting new opening in Barcelona

OPENED

SEPTEMBER 2018
204
ROOMS
OUR

1

ST

HOTEL IN SPAIN

6

Strategic report

easyHotel plc

Chief Executive Officer’s review

Transforming our business
Strategy

Owned hotels

Our owned hotels outperformed the market
for the third successive year and impressive
like-for-like sales growth was achieved across
our franchise hotel network. We opened nine
new hotels during the year in our stylish new
format, all of which have traded strongly from
opening. Together with our continued focus on
improving operational efficiencies and our
commitment to customer service, the increase
in sales and new openings has produced a
significant increase in our profits.

Our owned hotels continued to win market
share, with those that have been opened
twelve months or more outperforming their
competitive set (as measured by STR) throughout
the year by +5.6%pts Revpar** resulting in a
third consecutive year of outperformance
across the estate.

This is a very exciting time for easyHotel.
The growing strength of the brand’s simple
“no frills” super budget offer is well aligned to the
needs of today’s discerning and value‑conscious
traveller and the year has seen the Group make
excellent progress as it continues to build
momentum against its ambitious growth plans.

SUMMARY
• Market outperformance of owned
and franchise hotels
• Nine new hotels opened over
the period increasing the Group’s
portfolio room count by 42%
• Newly opened hotels trading
particularly strong reaching mature
occupancy % within twelve weeks
of opening
• Significantly accelerated pipeline
in place to deliver long-term
shareholder value
• Increased focus and resource on
European market opportunity with
new team in place to develop hotels
in Spain, France and Germany

The long-term structural growth drivers in
the international branded budget hotel sector
remain strong and the year has seen us take steps
to accelerate our expansion plans. The successful
equity fundraise in March 2018 is enabling us
to develop more owned hotels and we have
also increased our resource and exposure to
Continental Europe to take advantage of the
attractive opportunities for the brand in this market,
balancing the number of UK and European
openings. Our ongoing investment in the brand
and our network is also continuing to support
the development of new franchisee partnerships.
With the increasingly experienced team
we now have in place, continued high levels
of staff engagement and improving customer
satisfaction, we are in an excellent position
to leverage the easyHotel brand and deliver
improving returns for our shareholders.

Trading review

Total system sales grew by 26% to £37.3m
(2017: £29.7m), and our Company revenues
by 34% to £11.3m. This was achieved by an
increase in owned hotel Revpar (up 11.4%),
franchise hotel revenue (up 12.1%) and by the
opening of new hotels in Liverpool, Newcastle,
Leeds, Sheffield, The Hague Scheveningen Beach,
Maastricht, Belfast, Reading and Barcelona.
Occupancy for all owned and franchised hotels
was 82.4% (2017: 79.8%). All the new hotels have
traded very strongly since opening, achieving
mature occupancy within twelve weeks of opening.
Our strong sales performance led to a 29%
increase in adjusted EBITDA to £2.96m.
**	Revpar percentage change vs prior year.

Alongside a busy opening programme,
which saw us increase our owned hotel
network of rooms by 42%, we also completed
the refurbishment of our hotels in Croydon
and Glasgow. This investment has been
immediately earnings enhancing, seeing
an 8.8% increase in Revpar at these hotels.

The hotels opened during the financial
year have performed particularly strongly,
mirroring the strong performance seen by both
our Birmingham and Manchester hotels opened
in 2017. There were ten owned hotels operating
in our portfolio at the end of the financial year.

Franchise partners

Like-for-like revenue across our franchised
hotels increased by 12.1% during the financial
year, with total sales flat versus the previous
year, following the closure of Earl’s Court.
Four franchised hotels opened during the
period with the hotels in the Benelux region
performing particularly strongly. There were
23 franchised hotels operating in our portfolio
at the end of the financial year.

Market outlook

It was always going to be difficult for the
UK 2018 hotel market to be as strong as
2017. The year has been held back by slower
economic growth, significant increased supply
and reported weaker business travel volumes.
This is despite the weak Pound and events
such as the Royal Wedding and the biennial
Farnborough Airshow which have helped
keep leisure demand strong.
Looking ahead, ongoing political and
economic uncertainty is likely to affect hotel
demand in the UK over the next twelve months.
However, the Board remains confident that the
easyHotel brand will continue to outperform
the hotel sector as consumers seek out the
best value for money.
By contrast, the hotel market was much
stronger across Europe during 2018 with
Revpar growth balanced between occupancy
and rate, suggesting growth should continue
into 2019 and beyond.
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Development review

The Group continues to target carefully selected
locations to expand its portfolio of owned and
franchised hotels. We believe that the opportunity
to develop our owned hotel portfolio in key
gateway European cities is significant and have
decided to increase both our resource and
exposure to mainland Europe, to balance our
development pipeline more evenly between the
UK and Continental Europe, accelerating our
presence in these markets.
For owned hotels, the Group believes there is
potential for approximately 12,000 easyHotel
rooms primarily in the UK, Spain, France and
Germany with an additional opportunity for
approximately 15,000 franchised easyHotel
rooms across the UK, Europe and the Middle East.
Development of owned hotels
Our pipeline of hotels under development
continues to grow. During the year, we completed
the acquisition of four new hotel sites:
• Norfolk House, Milton Keynes. 125-year
lease acquired on part of Norfolk House for
the development of a 124-room hotel which
will open mid-2019.
• Fitzalan Place, Cardiff. Site acquired on a
freehold basis and the 120-room hotel is
expected to open in the next financial year.
• Forrest Street, Chester. Site acquired on a
freehold basis. The 109-room hotel is being
delivered as a turnkey development and
should open in 2019.
• Newmarket Road, Cambridge. Site
acquired on a 25-year lease subject to
planning permission. The 100-room hotel
should open in the next financial year.
Our 180-room hotel in Oxford, where we
are taking a 25-year lease, is currently under
construction and is expected to open in 2020.
As previously announced, the Group will also be
undertaking a full refurbishment of its property
at 80 Old Street, to bring this hotel up to our
new brand standards. The Board has taken
the decision to shut the entire building from
December 2018 instead of a rolling refurbishment
programme and expects to reopen the building
as an 89-bedroom hotel with 15,500 sq. ft of
separate office accommodation in the second
half of 2019. The total cost for the Old Street
development is expected to be approximately
£7m and the Board is confident that this investment
will maximise the value from the property for
the long-term benefit of shareholders.

Following a busy period of hotel openings,
at the end of the financial year the Group
currently has 2,974 rooms under development
totalling capital commitments of £40.7m.
The Group has a strong balance sheet and
the successful £50m (gross) equity placing in
March 2018 together with the additional £10m
corporate debt and £23m corporate accordion
facility ensure we have appropriate headroom
and capacity to finance up to nine additional
new projects from the Group’s identified owned
hotel development pipeline.
Development of franchised hotels
In addition to the four recently opened
franchised hotels mentioned above, the Group
has also signed new franchise agreements to
develop further hotels in the Benelux region,
Malaga and Switzerland. The 300-room hotel
in Bur Dubai will open in 2019. These hotel
openings will enhance our position as the super
budget hotel brand of scale, in the UK, Europe
and the Middle East.

Capability, organisation
and culture

It is essential that we continue to build the
capability of the business to enable it to grow
at speed.

During the last twelve months we have appointed
Richard Kiersey, an experienced Property Director,
to manage the growing number of hotels under
development. On 13 August 2018 we were
also pleased to confirm the appointment of
Marc Vieilledent as Group Development Director
to drive the development of our owned hotels
in Europe. Gary Burton joined the Board on
29 October 2018, replacing Marc Vieilledent as
Chief Financial Officer. Gary joins the Group from
Nuffield Health bringing a wealth of commercial
and international experience and I am confident
that he will be a valuable addition to our team.
The series of appointments we have made
both this year and in the prior year will ensure
that we have the talent in place to accelerate
and deliver on our growth plans. The strong
culture we are building here at easyHotel is
incredibly important to us and we continue to
place great emphasis on ensuring that all of
our colleagues feel valued, that achievements
and success are recognised and that all our
teams are focused on the opportunities
available to them in the business and have
the support to reach their full potential.
With such an exciting future, it is perhaps not
surprising that the staff engagement score was
79% during the year. At the year end the Group
employed 90 staff (2017: 56).

Development pipeline

We have opened some really exciting hotels in the last three years, and this will continue in the
coming months. Conscious of our wider social and environmental responsibilities, our hotels are
built to BREEAM Very Good standards. We are thoughtful in the choice of materials we use in
construction and are also harnessing smart technology as we develop new hotels in order to
reduce energy consumption.
Despite a number of rising costs – build costs, wage costs, utility costs, rates – we have taken a
series of management actions, including value engineering, which together with the accelerated
maturity of our recent openings, mean that our expected Group ROCE remains unaffected.
Open (o) and committed (c) projects by financial year
2016/17
(o)

2017/18
(o)

2018/19
(c)

2019/20
(c)

Beyond

Hotels

5

10

12

15

19

Rooms

520

1,130

1,343

1,672

2,230

Owned

Franchised
Hotels

20

23

33

34

36

Rooms

1,750

1,938

2,913

3,213

3,913

Total
Hotels

25

33

45

49

55

Rooms

2,270

3,068

4,256

4,885

6,143
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Chief Executive Officer’s review continued

Technology

Our hotels benefit from our day-to-day
hotel management expertise, whilst having
access to some of the world’s most powerful
marketing and distribution systems. The benefits
are significant and include: robust e-commerce
platforms; global digital marketing expertise
and activities; public relations and tactical
marketing; customer relationship marketing aimed
at travel agents, meeting planners, travel bookers
and guests; and a highly sophisticated revenue
management infrastructure.
Although we continue to sell a controlled
number of rooms via on-line travel agents
(OTAs), we remain focused on driving bookings
via our own website. As part of our focus on
improving our customers’ journey we launched
our new website in January 2018. Since then
we have seen an average 10% increase in the
conversion rate from customer visits to
completed bookings.

Charity work
During the last twelve months we asked
our staff to nominate a charity for us to
support for the next two years across the
business and they voted, overwhelmingly,
to support Parkinson’s UK.
We are raising money for Parkinson’s UK
via our website, using The Pennies
Foundation, as well as through guest
donations at front desk and via the
actions of our staff. These have ranged
from a team member skydiving to a
sponsored walk around Leeds Castle,
to a World Cup sweepstake and
sponsored half marathon.
We finished the year having raised
20% more than we had originally
targeted and have a further year
of fundraising still to go.

Our new booking engine has allowed us
to launch a new website and mobile app.
It will also enable us to introduce automated
check-in kiosks, to improve every stage of the
customer experience – online and at our hotels.
Our marketing campaigns will be further
refined to maximise the traffic to our website
and improve the return on our marketing
investment. With a new revenue management
system in place, we will be in an excellent
position to make further improvements to our
customers’ web journey, as well as to introduce
a more dynamic pricing strategy to further drive
Revpar growth. By offering our customers a
good night’s sleep at a super price and a quick
and easy way to make a booking, we believe
that we will attract new customers and
encourage significant repeat visits.

Our values

At easyHotel we run the business based on our
four values: We Care For You; We Keep Things
Simple; We’re Always The Best Value For Money;
and We Do What We Say. We believe in providing
our teams with an opportunity to build a great
career, providing our customers with a truly
super budget stay and giving our shareholders
a great return on their investment.
I want to take this opportunity to thank every
colleague and our business partners for making
this business as good as it is. I am confident
that, together, we can continue to deliver on
our strategic objectives in the months and
years ahead.

Guy Parsons

Chief Executive Officer
5 December 2018
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We don’t take
ourselves too
seriously
During the last twelve months we’ve
launched a number of fun PR stories that
have been read by hundreds of millions
people. They’ve included a “pupgrade”
service, a Valentine’s offer and having an
artist in residence use our Old Street hotel
as a canvas for their work!
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Our strategy and business model

Our growth strategy

Customer understanding

A market opportunity

When booking a budget hotel, our customers prioritise two key things:
location and price.

The long-term structural growth drivers in the branded budget hotel
sector remain strong.

Beyond these essentials, customer needs are relatively simple. They want
a good night’s sleep, a great bed, well-trained and friendly staff and
well-designed rooms.

The UK budget hotel sector has grown faster than any other sector
in the hotel industry for the last 30 years and is forecast to continue
to do so (source: Melvin Gold Consulting Ltd).

Our new hotels are being developed in line with rigorous brand guidelines,
carefully designed to prioritise the essentials.

In overseas markets we see a strong opportunity for the brand,
particularly in Continental Europe.
easyHotel can steal market share from other operators:

Performance overview
• Continued improvements in the Group’s
TripAdvisor scores.
• Owned hotels continued to win market share
outperforming their competitive set (as measured
by STR). The third year of outperformance across
the owned hotel estate.
• Strong like-for-like growth from franchised hotels,
outperforming the wider European market (as
measured by STR).

5.6%
Outperforming competitive set Revpar
as measured by STR

• the Group believes there is potential for approximately 12,000 owned
easyHotel rooms in the UK, Spain, France and Germany; and
• approximately 15,000 franchised easyHotel rooms across the UK,
Europe and the Middle East.

Performance overview
• Nine owned hotel openings over the period including
the Group’s first owned hotel in Continental Europe.
• A further four owned hotel sites in the UK added
to development pipeline.
• Six further hotels added to the franchised
development pipeline.
• Increased focus on strengthening Group development
pipeline in Europe to balance UK openings.
• Additional resource added to underpin European
expansion plans including appointment of Group
Development Director.

2,974 rooms
In the development pipeline

11

Annual report and accounts 2018

Maximising revenues

Delivering shareholder returns

We don’t have restaurants in our hotels – we use all available
space for bedrooms.

Our operating margins are high. We outsource our cleaning
to specialists and keep staffing levels to a minimum.

We offer consistent, good quality rooms at a great value price.
As a result our occupancies are high.

We use a combination of owned and franchised hotels. Franchised hotels
build a brand presence without the need for capital investment, deliver
a high incremental margin and increase ROCE.

Revenues are maximised via the revenue management
and e-commerce strategy.

Performance overview
• Adjusted EBITDA up 28.6%.
• Continuing to drive benefits from new revenue
management system.
• New website launched in January 2018 resulting in
10% increase in the conversion rate from customer
visits to completed bookings.

£3.0m
Adjusted EBITDA**
**	Adjusted EBITDA is a non-statutory measure that represents earnings before
interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation adjusted for pre-opening costs
related to the development of hotels, organisational restructuring costs, share
based payments and other adjusting items.

The Group adopts strict investment criteria for owned hotel
development (including leased hotels) that will contribute towards
our stretching ROCE target.
With a strategy to dispose of non-core assets in place, we maximise
the capital available to build bedrooms.

Performance overview
• All newly opened hotels are performing in line with
targets and anticipated to mature ahead of original
expectations.
• Build cost inflation has been offset through value
engineering that reduces costs but not quality.
• EPS for the year was 0.5p per ordinary share, reflecting
our strong financial performance and commitment to
our shareholders.
• Diluted EPS was 0.5p per share.

0.5p
Earnings per share
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Chief Financial Officer’s review

Significant progress
Revenue

Total revenue increased by 33.7% to £11.3m
(2017: £8.42m) driven by continued owned market
outperformance (up 5.6% pts), and the opening
of five owned and four franchised hotels.
Total revenue from our owned hotels was
up 43.0% to £9.4m (2017: £6.6m). This was
despite the closure of 70 rooms at easyHotel
Old Street, representing a 43% fall in capacity,
and closure of easyHotel Earl’s Court franchisee
(Dec 2017)1. Total average occupancy was 82.4%
(2017: 79.8%) and the average daily rate (ADR)
was £51.3 per room (2017: £47.8).

Appointed 29 October 2018

SUMMARY
Owned

• Revenue £9.4m (2017: £6.6m)
• Adjusted EBITDA £3.9m (2017: £3.2m)

Franchised

• Revenue £1.8m (2017: £1.8m)
• Adjusted EBITDA £1.1m (2017: £1.0m)

Total

• Revenue £11.3m (2017: £8.4m)
• Adjusted EBITDA £3.0m (2017: £2.3m)

Like-for-like revenue for franchised hotels
was up 12.1%. Total franchise revenue was
up 8.8% to £1.81m, recognising the prior year
benefited from a one-off exit fee from the
Earl’s Court franchisee. Like-for-like average
occupancy in franchised hotels was 81.3%
(2017: 77.7%) and average daily rate per
room was £53.9 (2017: £49.7).

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA (before share based payments
and other adjusting items) increased by 28.6%
to £2.96m (2017: £2.30m) and adjusted
EBITDAR 2 margin of 29.6% increased by
2.1%pts (2017: 27.5%).
The economy and sector continues to experience
macroeconomic challenges, driven by Brexit
and political uncertainty. easyHotel’s value
engineering initiatives and continuing growth
are helping to mitigate market challenges
and cost pressures.

Profit before tax

Profit before tax was up 1.4% to £0.87m
(2017: £0.86m).
Depreciation and amortisation increased
80.7% to £1.50m (2017: £0.83m), driven by
easyHotel Manchester (opening in the second
half of the prior year), easyHotel Liverpool
(opening early in the year), and an IT investment
in a new property management system in the
prior year.

1.	Like-for-like (LFL) hotels include Old Street, Croydon
and Glasgow that all underwent refurbishment during
the year. It is therefore not possible to report LFL
revenue for the owned hotels.

The total of adjusting items is 38% lower
at £0.25m (2017: £0.40m), driven by prior
year losses on disposal arising from the
part-closure of easyHotel Old Street.
Total pre-opening costs were broadly flat, versus
prior year, with more openings in the year and a
lower average opening cost per hotel.
Share based payments expense of £0.28m
(2017: £0.17m) increased proportionally with
2018 being the third year of the scheme.
A Finance income, net of foreign exchange
gains/losses, of £0.30m (2017: £0.27m)
represents interest income on financial assets
that more than offsets a financial expense
of £0.12m (2017: £0.09m) related to interest
on borrowings incurred during the year, net of
borrowing costs attributable to the construction
of new owned hotels capitalised as required
by IAS 23.

Taxation

The effective tax rate for the period was 26%
(2017: 25%).

Earnings per share and dividend

Profit for the year was £0.65m (2017: £0.64m),
with basic earnings per share maintained at
0.5p (2017: 0.7p) even after raising £50m
of new equity. The Board is proposing a final
dividend of 0.15p per ordinary share on the
enlarged share base, or a total dividend for the
financial year of 0.22p (2017: 0.33p) including
the interim dividend of 0.07p (2017: 0.11p) paid
on 29 June 2018, this will maintain the total
cash pay-out to investors year on year.

Cash flow and balance sheet

Net cash generated from operations was
£2.65m (2017: £2.22m) with total cash
and cash equivalents on 30 September 2018
of £41.4m (2017: £33.3m).
Net cash used in investment activities was
£47.4m. Net cash generated from financing
activities was £52.9m (2017: £40.6m),
driven by the placing of new ordinary shares
in March 2018.

2.	Adjusted EBITDAR margin is adjusted EBITDA
as previously disclosed including Rent Expense.
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The Group ended the financial year with net
assets of £119.64m (2017: £70.18m), of which
£41.4m comprised cash and cash equivalents
(2017: £33.3m). At year end, total bank
borrowings were £16.5m (2017: £12.0m)
and 1,125,000 ordinary shares in the Company
were held by the Employee Benefit Trust
(2017: 1,125,000).

Post-balance sheet events

80 Old Street shuts from December 2018 for
a full refurbishment and is expected to re-open
as a 89-bedroom hotel and 15,500 sq ft of office
accommodation in the second half of 2019.
A central freehold site in Bristol has been acquired
with the potential to develop a 145-bedroom
freehold easyHotel. Planning permission has
been granted for the development of a new
purpose-built 180-room hotel in Oxford on
a 25-year lease. Lastly, a new 154-bedroom
franchised hotel will be developed at
Amsterdam Schiphol Airport, the main
international airport in the Netherlands.

Gary Burton

Chief Financial Officer
5 December 2018
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Risk management and principal risks

Managing our risks effectively
Principal risks and uncertainties
The Board has primary responsibility for ensuring the Group’s risks are properly understood, quantified
and appropriately managed, but it looks to the Audit Committee to provide assurance on risk management
processes and controls. The Audit Committee and the Board review the Group’s risk register. The actions
proposed and taken by management to mitigate risk and to reduce the likelihood and impact of the risks
faced by the business are considered regularly and are deemed satisfactory.
The principal risks and uncertainties of the business and how they are managed are set out in the table below.

PRINCIPAL RISKS
Risk

Key mitigations

Change in the year

Comment

Failure to extend the
hotel portfolio in line
with strategic targets
and funding and
returns parameters

Our executive and wider management
teams have extensive sector experience
to identify good opportunities and deliver
development and franchising initiatives.
We actively seek to identify potential sites
and franchisees in the UK, Europe and
beyond to develop our hotel portfolio.

Significant pipeline of hotels currently
in place and resources enhanced and
reorganised since the prior year to enable
extra focus to be placed on development,
particularly in Europe.

Brand reputational
damage

The Group operates to defined brand
standards and carries out brand audits to
ensure they are maintained. Responsibilities
are clearly defined, across both the owned
and franchised businesses, to ensure
brand standards are maintained.

Brand audits are regularly conducted
and corrective action plans put in place
where appropriate.

Brexit increases uncertainty
in the political and/or
economic outlook, adversely
impacting the business.
For example, recruitment
challenges may increase
following Brexit

Budget hotels have outperformed the
rest of the sector and this trend would
be expected to continue in a recessionary
environment as consumers seek better
value. Weaker sterling would be expected
to increase staycations and inbound
tourism, benefiting our predominantly
UK based business.

We are actively taking steps to upskill
employees to fill hard-to-recruit positions.
As we expand further into Europe, a greater
proportion of non-sterling revenues will
naturally mitigate the risk associated with
the UK leaving the EU.

Disaster incidents that
could seriously impact
the business such as fire,
flood or terrorist attack

A comprehensive disaster recovery plan,
with back-up processes and facilities to
ensure the business can continue to operate
with minimal disruption, is in place.
Appropriate insurance cover protects
the business financially in the event
of a disaster incident.

Relevant insurance cover is in place.
Improved crisis plans have been developed
to help manage extreme events.

Failure of information
systems, cyber-attack or
data protection breach

The Group has specialist service
providers which advise and support
the business on its IT security and GDPR
responsibilities. Staff training, data
back-up, penetration testing and other
security measures are also in place.

A comprehensive review of systems
and processes was undertaken as
part of our GDPR preparations.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS
Risk

Key mitigations

Old Street planning issues
negatively impact EBITDA

We have developed value-optimising plans
for the future of the building. EBITDA will
be negatively impacted in the short term
but, in the longer term, increased value
will be extracted from the asset.

The legacy planning consent challenges
have provided an opportunity for us to
refurbish the building as part hotel and
part office. This will maximise the potential
revenues from the whole building to mitigate
the lost EBITDA from the reduced number
of hotel bedrooms.

Failure of a key supplier

Our business is reliant on a few key
suppliers which provide services such
as laundry, housekeeping and reservation
systems. Regular supplier due diligence
and contingency plans are in place to
ensure operations can continue in the
event of a supplier failure.

Contract tender and approval processes
have been reviewed and enhanced during
the year. Contingency plans are in place.

Health and safety
standards are
compromised

Risk assessments are completed,
documented and regularly reviewed for
each location. Staff training (both during
induction and on an ongoing basis),
the appointment of fire marshals and
trained first aiders and the maintenance
of appropriate accident reporting procedures
safeguard our staff and guests.

Regular health and safety assessments
and meetings take place across the business.
The Group is working towards achieving ISO
9002 accreditation.

Construction projects
are not completed on
time, to cost and to a
required standard

During the year we appointed a Group
Property Director. We are in the process
of implementing standard contractual
arrangements, in particular on a ‘design
and build’ basis. Tightly controlled project
planning and monitoring processes,
supported by external experts, ensure
problems are anticipated, avoided
and well managed.

New teams of consultants for the UK and
Europe have been appointed. Although risks
will always exist, these will be minimised by
better quality surveys and the appointment
of good contractors with a proven track record.
We use carefully selected suppliers that have
the resources and expertise to deliver large,
complex construction projects.

Key

Increase in risk

No change in risk

Change in the year

Comment

Decrease in risk

See also note 3 to the financial statements for further information on financial risks.
This Strategic Report has been approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 5 December 2018 and was signed on its behalf by:

Gary Burton

Chief Financial Officer
5 December 2018
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Leadership team

Board of Directors
The Company currently has five Directors, three of whom are Non-Executive.

Jonathan Lane OBE

Independent
Non-Executive Chairman
Jonathan, a Chartered Surveyor,
was Non-Executive Chairman
of Shaftesbury PLC, a FTSE 250
real estate investment trust, until
his retirement in September 2016.
Until 2011 he was Shaftesbury’s
Chief Executive. Jonathan is Vice
President of the Tennis Foundation
and a Trustee of the Royal
Theatrical Support Trust.
Jonathan was appointed as a
Non-Executive Director of the
Company in June 2014 and
became Non-Executive Chairman
in July 2015. Jonathan is Chairman
of the Nominations Committee
and is a member of both the Audit
and Remuneration Committees.

Guy Parsons

Chief Executive Officer
Guy has almost 30 years of hotel
and leisure industry experience.
Having worked at divisional board
level for Accor UK and Whitbread,
he joined the board of Travelodge
in 2004 and was promoted to
Chief Executive Officer in 2010,
leading the successful growth
of the business to over 500 hotels
in the UK, Ireland and Spain. Guy
is also a Non-Executive Director
of the Yorkshire Building Society.
Guy was appointed as easyHotel’s
Chief Executive Officer in August
2015. Guy is a member of the
Nominations Committee.

Gary Burton

Chief Financial Officer
Gary qualified as a Certified
Chartered Accountant with Arthur
Andersen and is also a member
of the Association of Corporate
Treasurers. Prior to joining the
Group, Gary was a Finance
Director at Nuffield Health, having
previously held a number of senior
finance and treasury roles during a
nine year career with Kingfisher Plc.
Gary was appointed as
easyHotel’s Chief Financial Officer
in October 2018.

Scott Christie

Independent
Non-Executive Director
Scott qualified as a Chartered
Accountant with Coopers &
Lybrand. He went on to spend
ten years in senior financial
and change management roles
with Diageo plc. He then joined
Macdonald Hotels PLC as Group
Finance Director and then Chief
Operating Officer. Since then,
Scott has held a number of roles in
private equity-backed technology
and healthcare businesses.
Scott was appointed as a
Non-Executive Director of the
Company in June 2014 and chairs
both the Audit and Remuneration
Committees. Scott is also a member
of the Nominations Committee.
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Senior Executives

Harm Meijer

Non-Executive Director
Harm is a founding partner of
the Company’s major shareholder,
ICAMAP, and is Managing Director
of ICAMAP Advisory. He has
extensive experience in the equity
markets having worked previously
at the Amsterdam Exchanges
and ABN Amro before moving
to JPMorgan in London where
he was appointed as Managing
Director in 2010.
Harm is a member of the
Supervisory Board of NSI NV.

Marc Vieilledent

Chief Development Officer
Marc is a French Certified Public
Accountant, having previously
qualified with Price Waterhouse.
Marc joined the Company following
16 years at Accor SA, where he
worked until 2013, with his most
recent role being Executive Vice
President of Asset Management.
Marc has previously served as a
Non-Executive Director of the
French shopping centre real estate
owner Immochan SA.
Marc served as easyHotel’s CFO
from May 2015 to October 2018.

Richard Kiersey

Property Director
Richard is a Chartered Surveyor
and has been in the hotel and
leisure sector for over 30 years.
Previously holding Acquisition
Director and Property Director
roles with Greenall’s Group,
De Vere Group, Guoman Hotels
and Amaris Hospitality, with
responsibility covering major
refurbishment projects and
multiply acquisition rollouts.
Richard joined the Company in
May 2018 as Property Director.
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Chairman’s corporate governance report

The Board recognises the importance of robust
and appropriate governance and management
of risk to ensure the long-term success of the
easyHotel business. As Chairman it is my
responsibility to lead the Board’s governance
practices. The Board is committed to operating
in a transparent manner and I am, therefore,
pleased to present this report describing the
arrangements which the Board has established
to ensure the highest standards of corporate
governance are applied and maintained across
the business.
Our role as a Board is to create the conditions
in which a resilient and successful business
can continue to grow. Annually we review
and determine our strategy and business model
and then continuously monitor how management
is implementing those plans. We review
performance to ensure those plans remain
on track or else are modified to take account
of unforeseen circumstances. We are constantly
mindful of the risks to which the business is
exposed to ensure they are being appropriately
identified and managed. All this is done within
a positive culture which recognises the
considerable responsibility which the business
has to behave in an ethical manner.
Effective governance is central to achieving
these aims. During the year, the Board elected
to comply with the governance principles and
guidance set out in the UK’s Quoted Companies
Alliance Corporate Governance Code
(the “QCA Code”). The Board considers that
compliance with the QCA Code will enable us
to serve the interests of all our key stakeholders,
including our shareholders, and will promote
the maintenance and creation of long-term
value in the Company.
This report describes our approach to
governance, including information on relevant
policies, practices and the operation of the
Board and its Committees. Additional detail
is also provided in the corporate governance
statement on our website.

Jonathan Lane OBE

Non-Executive Chairman
5 December 2018

The Board of Directors

The Board comprises two Executive Directors,
an independent Non-Executive Chairman and
two Non-Executive Directors, one of whom is
considered to be independent.
The independent Non-Executive Chairman
is responsible for leading the Board and its
governance arrangements and for ensuring that
communication with the Group’s shareholders
is effective. The Chief Executive Officer oversees
management of the business on a day-to-day
basis and is accountable to the Board for the
Group’s financial and operational performance.
Details of the backgrounds and qualifications
of our Directors, together with information on
the roles which they have within the organisation,
are provided on pages 16 and 17.
Our Board is supported by a professional
Company Secretary who, amongst other things,
ensures the governance processes adopted by
the Board and its Committees are well considered,
and that information flows and practices promote
effective decision making.
The Board is satisfied that, collectively, the
Directors have an appropriate balance of skills
and knowledge, including a range of hospitality,
property and financial experience, to govern
and lead the easyHotel business effectively.

The Board’s responsibilities
and processes

The Board of Directors is responsible for the
Company’s strategic direction and for major
decisions made in pursuance of that strategy,
as well as for the monitoring and oversight of
implementation by management and business
performance. Generally the Board meets every
month, with additional meetings held as required.
There is a schedule of matters specifically
reserved for Board approval and decision
making. A copy of this schedule is available
on the Company website. Within the collective
environment of the unitary Board, the separate
responsibilities of Committees and individuals
are also well defined and understood.
The Board reviews strategy and the
business model annually and planning is then
implemented and monitored so that expected
outcomes, the risks that may impede their
achievement and the resources needed to
deliver them are comprehensively understood.

Monitoring and assessment of performance
and progress towards the strategic objectives are
carried out at each Board meeting. The Group’s
strategy, business model and assessment of the
principal risks that the business faces are set
out on pages 14 and 15.
All Directors have access to the advice of the
Company Secretary, who is responsible for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed
and that the Company complies with all
applicable rules, regulations and obligations.
Directors may take independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense as and when
necessary to support the performance of their
duties as Directors of the Company.

Committees of the Board

The Board has established Audit, Nominations
and Remuneration Committees. The Board
appoints the Committee members who are
identified on page 20.
Separate reports are provided by the
Audit Committee (page 21) and Remuneration
Committee (pages 22 to 24).
The Nominations Committee was established
shortly before the year end and did not meet
during the year. It will provide a separate
report in the 2019 annual report and accounts.
The Committees’ terms of reference, which
are kept under review, are available on the
Company website.
Each Committee may access any external
advice it needs and is supported by the
Company Secretary.

Appointment, election
and re-election of Directors

Appointments to the Board are the responsibility
of the Board as a whole but, in future, will be
made upon the recommendation of the newly
established Nominations Committee.
When a Board or senior management vacancy
arises, the first step in the process is generally to
carry out an analysis of the role and capabilities
that are required to fulfil it. Where there is no
suitable internal candidate, an external search
agency is normally used to ensure that the search
encompasses a wide pool of potential appointees
who can be assessed against the objective criteria
established in the initial scoping exercise. This was
not the case when Harm Meijer was appointed
as a Non-Executive Director as his appointment
was made pursuant to a Relationship Agreement
with major shareholder ICAMAP.
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The Company’s Directors retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting. Before recommending a Director for re-election, the Board, on the
recommendation of the Nominations Committee, reviews the independence, contribution and commitment of the relevant Directors in order
to satisfy itself that their continuation in office is considered appropriate.

Board attendance

The Directors of the Company are committed to sound governance of the business and they each devote sufficient time to ensure this happens.
The table below sets out the attendance statistics for each Director at Board and, where relevant, Committee meetings held during the financial year.
Board
attendance
15 meetings held

Audit
Committee
attendance
3 meetings held

Remuneration
Committee
attendance
5 meetings held

Scott Christie

15

3

5

Jonathan Lane OBE

15

3

5

Harm Meijer*

5

—

—

Guy Parsons

15

—

—

Marc Vieilledent

15

—

—

Director

*

7 Board meetings have been held since Harm Meijer was appointed in March 2018.

Gary Burton did not serve as a Director during the year ended 30 September 2018.

Board performance evaluation,
succession planning and diversity

It is the Board’s responsibility to promote the
success of the Company. To provide assurance
that the Board is effective, its performance, and
that of its Committees, is periodically evaluated.
The most recent evaluation was carried out in
September 2018, facilitated by the Company
Secretary using a questionnaire and separate
reviews of the matters reserved to the Board, the
Committee terms of reference and the standards
anticipated within the QCA Code. The Board
was pleased to confirm that the evaluation
demonstrated the Company was compliant with
the QCA Code. However, a number of actions
were identified as part of the Board’s commitment
to continual improvement.
The Board also asked the Nominations
Committee to review and make recommendations
on the composition of the Board, taking particular
account of diversity and specific skills relating
to the business to ensure that the longer-term
vision for the balance and succession of the
Board remains appropriate.
easyHotel’s Board is small and, at present,
there are no female Directors. This is a point
which the Board has actively considered
and, in recruitment at both Board and senior
management level, it has encouraged external
agencies to put forward a balanced pool of
both male and female candidates. The Board is
wholly committed to diversity and considers
the organisation as a whole to be diverse, both
in terms of gender and other diversity factors.
Reflecting this, diversity and inclusion policies
underpin practice in the workplace and
operationally within the business.

Culture and values

The Board has defined the easyHotel values
– We Care For You; We Keep Things Simple;
We’re Always The Best Value For Money;
and We Do What We Say. These values
set the parameters for the corporate culture
which governs everything the business does.
The Board shows leadership in its decision
making by ensuring consistency with those
values, which are disseminated and embedded
within the business.

Stakeholders and the environment

The Board has identified a number
of stakeholders which are of great importance
to the business. These include shareholders,
employees, customers, franchisees and suppliers.
The Board recognises the importance of effective
communication with its stakeholders and, in
particular, with our colleagues across the Group,
without whom we cannot deliver our strategy
and business model. Their views are important to
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer reports
on employee matters at all Board meetings.
We also understand that easyHotel is part of a
wider community. Many of our colleagues are
members of the communities local to our hotels.
We take our responsibilities seriously, including in
relation to the environmental impact our business
has. For example, we are moving to paperless
meetings and paperless reporting across the
business and recycling bins are in place across
hotels and our head office. In our most recent
waste management contract, we included a

commitment to recycle a higher percentage
of waste in order to reduce the proportion of waste
sent to landfill. Monthly waste management
targets have been set across the estate.
We are thoughtful in the choice of materials
we use in construction and are also harnessing
smart technology as we develop new hotels in
order to reduce energy consumption. Corridor
sensors activate lights in response to movement,
key card heating/lighting controls ensure energy
use is minimised when rooms are not in use,
and air source heat pumps and economy setting
showers help to improve our energy efficiency.
As well as adopting responsible values
which define expectations for how our business
operates, we are proud to be working with our first
charity partner, Parkinson’s UK, to support its
outstanding work to provide better care, treatments
and quality of life for those with the condition.
We have committed to a two-year partnership
during which colleagues across the business
will engage in a variety of fundraising activities.

Shareholder communications

An active programme of institutional investor
meetings and transparent reporting are used
to keep our shareholders well informed about
the easyHotel business. All Directors attend the
Annual General Meeting and are available for
questions in the meeting and for more informal
discussions outside of that meeting. A point
of contact (ir@easyhotel.com) is provided
to facilitate contact from shareholders
and other stakeholders.
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Directors’ report

The Directors are pleased to submit their report
on easyHotel plc for the financial year ended
30 September 2018.

Review of the business

The Directors are required to set out a fair
review of the business and future developments
of the Group during the financial year ended
30 September 2018 and the position of the
Group at the year end. This information can be
found in the Chairman’s Statement on page 4,
the Chief Executive Officer’s Review on pages
6 to 8 and the Chief Financial Officer’s Review
on pages 12 and 13 and in the rest of the report.

Post-year-end developments

80 Old Street shuts from 3 December 2018
and will reopen as an 89-bedroom hotel and
15,500 sq ft of office accommodation in the
second half of 2019. A central freehold site in
Bristol has been acquired to potentially develop
a 145-bedroom freehold easyHotel. Planning
permission has been granted for the development
of a new purpose-built 180-room hotel in Oxford,
on a 25-year lease. A new 154-bedroom
franchised hotel will be developed at Amsterdam
Schiphol Airport, the main international airport
in the Netherlands.

Dividends

A final dividend of 0.15p per ordinary share
has been recommended by the Directors for
the financial year ended 30 September 2018.
Subject to approval at the Company’s Annual
General Meeting, the dividend will be paid on

15 February 2019 to all shareholders on the
register on 25 January 2019. This is in addition
to the interim dividend of 0.07p per share already
paid, resulting in a total dividend for the year
of 0.22p per ordinary share.

Charitable and political donations
A charitable payment to Parkinson’s UK
of £862 was made during the financial
year ended 30 September 2018.

Directors’ indemnity provisions

As permitted by the Articles of Association, the
Directors have the benefit of an indemnity which
is a qualifying third party indemnity provision
as defined by s236 of the Companies Act 2006.
The indemnity was in force throughout the
financial period and at the date of approval
of the financial statements. The Group also
purchased and maintained throughout the
financial period Directors’ and Officers’ liability
insurance in respect of itself and its Directors.

Auditors

BDO LLP have expressed their willingness to
continue in office as auditors and a resolution
to re-appoint BDO LLP will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

Corporate governance statement

The Chairman’s Corporate Governance Report,
which describes the practices and responsibilities
of the Board and its Committees, can be found
on pages 18 and 19. Our corporate governance
arrangements are also described on our website.

Directors

The Directors who served during the year ended 30 September 2018 were as follows:
Jonathan Lane OBE

Independent Non-Executive Chairman

Scott Christie

Independent Non-Executive Director

Harm Meijer

Non-Executive Director (appointed 13 March 2018)

Guy Parsons

Chief Executive Officer

Marc Vieilledent

Chief Financial Officer

Gary Burton was appointed as the Group’s Chief Financial Officer on 29 October 2018
and Marc Vieilledent’s directorship terminated on the same date.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies

Further information on the principal risks
and uncertainties faced by the business has
been set out in the Strategic Report and in
note 3 to the financial statements.

Disclosure of information
to auditors

All of the current Directors have taken all
the steps they ought to have taken to make
themselves aware of any information needed
by the Company’s auditors for the purposes
of their audit and to establish that the auditors
are aware of that information. The Directors
are not aware of any relevant information
of which the auditors are unaware.
This Directors’ Report has been approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 5 December 2018 and was signed on its
behalf by:

Gary Burton
Director
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Audit Committee report

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee members are Scott Christie,
who is its Chairman, and Jonathan Lane OBE.
Scott is a Chartered Accountant who has recent
and relevant financial experience.
The Committee, supported by the Company
Secretary, held three meetings during the year
ended 30 September 2018. The Group’s
external auditors and Executive Directors
attend the Committee’s meetings by invitation
and the Committee ensures that the auditors
also have regular opportunities to speak to the
Committee in the absence of management.
The Committee’s agendas are planned on
an annual basis to ensure all the Committee’s
duties are discharged in a timely manner in
accordance with its terms of reference.
The Audit Committee’s terms of reference, which
clearly set out its responsibilities and procedures,
are available on the Group website.

Financial statements

During the year, the Committee reviewed both
the annual and half-year financial statements.
The audit plan, including its scope, was discussed
with the external auditors, as were the findings
from their audit work. In particular, the auditors’
views on the Group’s results and accounting
policies and the adequacy of financial controls;
any unadjusted audit differences; post-year-end
events; and management responses and
materiality judgements, were examined. Following
consideration and challenge, the treatment of
these matters was considered satisfactory.

The Audit Committee paid particular attention
to those risks to the integrity of the financial
statements that were considered to be
significant, either because of the nature of the
Company’s activities or because they generally
apply to all businesses. These risks included
revenue recognition, management override,
capitalisation of costs and valuation of share
options. The Audit Committee satisfied itself,
through discussion of the audit plan, audit
findings and financial controls, that these risks
were adequately addressed.

Auditor objectivity

The Committee recognises the importance
of auditor objectivity and independence in
providing assurance to investors about the
integrity of the Group’s financial statements.
The Committee receives information in writing
from the auditors on their fees (audit and
non-audit) and the firm’s internal procedures
to ensure that the independence of the firm,
including that of its audit staff, audit manager
and audit partner, is reviewed and properly
assessed. The Committee has discussed
and appropriately challenged such issues
with the audit partner and deemed the
responses to be satisfactory.
BDO’s audit partner was last rotated in 2016.
The Committee has considered whether an
audit re-tender should be recommended to the
Board but concluded that a recommendation
at this time for the re-appointment of BDO LLP
as the Company’s auditors was in the Company’s
best interests. The Committee will continue to
keep matters under review.

Risk management

As the Group has no separate risk committee,
the Audit Committee also has responsibility
for oversight of the Group’s risk management
processes in order to provide assurance to the
Board that those processes are appropriately
robust and effective. The Committee reviews
the Group risk register and the actions taken
to mitigate those risks and has also reviewed
the reporting of principal risks on pages 14
and 15.

Ethical policies

The Board has adopted a number of policies
to guide the behaviour of those who work for
easyHotel. Those policies confirm the Board’s zero
tolerance approach to bribery and corruption
and set out the arrangements that are in place
to enable any colleague who is concerned about
possible wrongdoing within the business to speak
up in confidence. The Committee reviews those
policies and receives reports from the Chief
Executive Officer about the effectiveness of
those arrangements and any incidents that
have occurred during the year.
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Remuneration report

During the year ended 30 September 2018,
the Committee met five times.

As an AIM company, easyHotel plc is not
required to comply with Schedule 8 of the
Large and Medium-sized Companies and
Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations
2008. However, the Board is committed to
transparency of its remuneration arrangements
and, accordingly, an expanded disclosure has
been provided on a voluntary basis in order to
provide shareholders with an overview of our
remuneration practices. The content of this
report is unaudited unless stated.

The Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference
are available on the Company’s website.

Remuneration policy

The objective of the Group’s remuneration policy
is to ensure that the overall remuneration of the
Executive Directors is aligned with the strategy,
performance and risk tolerance of the Group,
whilst preserving an appropriate balance of profit
delivery and shareholder value. The overall
arrangements are designed to support the delivery
of the Company’s long-term strategic goals.
The policy is applied both at recruitment and
on an ongoing basis.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is made up of the
Company’s independent Non-Executive Directors,
Scott Christie, who chairs the Committee, and
Jonathan Lane OBE. The Committee reviews the
performance of the Executive Directors and sets
the scale and structure of their remuneration
and the basis of their service agreements with
due regard to the interests of shareholders and
to the pay and conditions of other Group staff
members. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendations to the Board concerning the
structure of the Group’s bonus and long-term
incentive schemes, the awards made under such
plans and the performance conditions attached
to them. The Committee seeks support from
external advisers as necessary and, during the
year, Deloitte continued to advise the Committee
on certain elements of the Group’s incentive
arrangements. No other services were provided
by Deloitte to the Group during the year.

The remuneration arrangements for Executive
Directors consist of basic salary and other fixed
benefits, payment in lieu of pension contribution,
annual performance related bonuses and
long-term performance share awards. In common
with other employees, the Executive Directors
are also entitled to participate in the easyHotel plc
ShareSave Plan (note 27).
In determining the remuneration of the
Executive Directors, the Remuneration Committee
seeks to enable the Group to attract, retain and
motivate Executives of the highest calibre, but
without paying more than is necessary for this
purpose. During the year, consistent with the
wider workforce, the Executive Directors were
awarded a 2.5% pay increase.

The Remuneration Committee has worked to
establish performance related incentives that
support the delivery of easyHotel’s strategic
goals, ensuring that individual rewards are
linked to clear and stretching corporate and
individual targets. These performance related
elements of pay, described further on the
following page, are intended to represent
a significant proportion of each Executive
Director’s overall remuneration.

Annual bonus

The annual bonus payable for 2018 was based
upon achievement of EBITDA and profit before
tax targets together with new hotel developments.
Details of the payments made are provided on
page 24.
When reviewing the basis for annual
bonus awards for 2019, the Committee has
determined that, at this stage in the Group’s
development, an appropriate emphasis for
the performance measures will be delivery
of EBITDA and PBT targets and measurable
development growth in both the owned and
franchised hotel elements of the Group’s portfolio.
For on-target performance, Executive Directors
will be rewarded with a cash bonus equivalent
to not less than 50% of base salary, with a
100% bonus being the maximum payable in
the event that stretch targets are achieved.

Performance Share Plan

Upon the recommendation of the Committee, the Board has previously established the easyHotel 2015 Performance Share Plan. This plan enables
conditional share awards to be granted which are subject to achievement of performance criteria typically measured over a three-year performance
period. Awards of up to 200% of salary can be granted under the plan; however, it is expected that normal awards will be capped at 100% of salary.
Vesting of 2016 awards
The performance criteria for the awards made under the easyHotel Performance Share Plan in 2016 were based on performance over the 2016,
2017 and 2018 financial years, and are summarised in the table below.
Weighting
30%
Shareholder returns

Absolute TSR

30%

20%

10%

10%

Rooms
Cumulative
owned rooms
approved for
development

Profitability
Cumulative
franchised rooms
approved for
development

ROCE on
mature
owned
properties

Performance is below threshold level

Group net
EBITDA
margin

Vesting of
element on
straight line
basis

Nil

Threshold level performance is achieved

30%

Performance is on target

65%

Performance achieves or exceeds stretch target

100%

Based on performance against the above targets, the 2016 awards will vest at 76.4% of maximum.
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2017 awards
At the time of the Company’s issue of new capital (completed in October 2016), the Remuneration Committee undertook that, having generated
momentum in the Company’s development programme, the award under the Performance Share Plan would be subject, predominantly (75% minimum),
to earnings per share performance targets and that future awards would be subject to shareholder approval.
The performance criteria for the awards made under the Performance Share Plan in 2017 were based on performance over the 2017, 2018 and 2019
financial years and are summarised in the table below.
Weighting
80%

10%

10%

Earnings per share

Cumulative owned rooms
in operation

Cumulative franchised rooms
in operation
Vesting of
element on
straight line
basis

Performance is below threshold

Nil

Threshold level performance is achieved

35%

Performance is on target

65%

Performance achieves or exceeds stretch target

100%

2018 awards
The performance criteria for the awards made under the Performance Share Plan in 2018 were based on performance over the 2018, 2019 and 2020
financial years and are summarised in the table below.
Weighting
30%

40%

15%

15%

Absolute TSR

Owned rooms open

Other rooms open

Mature ROCE
Vesting of
element on
straight line
basis

Performance is below threshold

Nil

Threshold level performance is achieved

35%

Performance is on target

65%

Performance achieves or exceeds stretch target

100%

The above award was made subject to shareholder approval and a resolution for this purpose is proposed in the notice of the Annual General Meeting
to be held on 21 January 2019.
It is expected that there will be a further award under the Performance Share Plan in 2019 but the Remuneration Committee has not yet determined
the precise terms that will apply. Details will be disclosed at the time of grant.

Executive Directors’ service contracts

The Executive Directors have service contracts setting out the terms of their employment. In each case, the contract may be terminated on six months’ notice.
Upon the appointment of Gary Burton as the Company’s new Chief Financial Officer (effective 29 October 2018) his proposed terms of employment,
including salary as well as other fixed and variable benefits, were reviewed and agreed by the Committee.

Non-Executive Directors

Remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors is determined by the Board as a whole, with the relevant Non-Executive Director taking no part in the
discussions or decision in relation to his own fees. The Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to annual bonuses or employee benefits. Each of the
Non-Executive Directors has a letter of appointment stating, amongst other things, annual fees, the time commitment expected for the role and that
the appointment may be terminated by either party giving one month’s prior written notice. In addition, Harm Meijer’s appointment is subject to a
Relationship Agreement between the Company and the Company’s major shareholder, ICAMAP, as well as a separate letter of appointment.
Under the terms of that letter no fee is paid to him for his appointment.
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Remuneration report continued

Directors’ remuneration (in £) (audited)

To aid shareholders’ understanding, in the table below we provide the remuneration for each Director.
Basic
salary
£

Payment in
lieu of
pension
£

Bonuses
£

Termination
payments
£

Other
payments
£

Total
£

78,333

—

—

—

—

78,333

Guy Parsons

236,294

23,629

140,171

—

1,845

401,939

Marc Vieilledent

185,148

18,515

109,831

—

1,604

315,098

Year ended 30 September 2018

Non-Executive Chairman
Jonathan Lane OBE
Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors
Scott Christie

43,333

—

—

—

—

43,333

Harm Meijer

—

—

—

—

—

—

42,144 250,002

—

Total Directors’ remuneration for the year ended
30 September 2018

543,108

3,449 838,703

Gary Burton has been appointed as a Director with effect from 29 October 2018 on a basic salary of £200,000 per annum, a pension contribution
(or payment in lieu) of £20,000 (10% of salary) plus a car allowance of £10,000 per annum. He will also be entitled to participate in the Company’s
annual bonus plan and Performance Share Plan on the same basis as other Executive Directors.
The Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Guy Parsons, holds a non-executive directorship (detailed on page 16) with one other company and is permitted
to retain the fees received in respect of this appointment.
Directors’ interests (as at 30 September 2018)

Ordinary
shares

% of issued
share capital

Guy Parsons

254,158

0.17

Scott Christie

116,456

0.08

Jonathan Lane OBE

650,000

0.45

15,000

0.01

—

—

Marc Vieilledent
Harm Meijer

As at 30 September 2018, the interests of the Directors in ordinary shares, pursuant to options granted under the easyHotel Performance Share Plan,
were as follows:
Ordinary
shares under
option at
30 September
2017

Shares under
option granted
during the year

Lapsed during
the year

Ordinary
shares under
option at
30 September
2018

Guy Parsons

703,657

204,116

—

907,773

Marc Vieilledent

577,370

159,935

—

737,305

Option holder

More information on the easyHotel Performance Share Plan can be seen in note 27 to the financial statements.
As at 30 September 2018, the interests of the Directors in ordinary shares, pursuant to options granted under the easyHotel ShareSave Plan
(detailed further in note 27), were as follows:
Ordinary
shares under
option at
30 September
2017

Shares under
option granted
during the year

Lapsed during
the year

Ordinary
shares under
option at
30 September
2018

Guy Parsons

20,361

—

—

20,361

Marc Vieilledent

20,361

—

—

20,361

Option holder
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of easyHotel plc

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of easyHotel plc (the ‘parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the year ended 30 September 2018
which comprise the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated and Company statement of financial position, the consolidated
and Company statement of cash flows, the consolidated and Company statement of changes in equity and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group and parent company financial statements is applicable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the parent company financial statements,
as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.
In our opinion:
• the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 30 September 2018
and of the group’s profit for the year then ended;
• the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;
• the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as
applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and
• the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including
the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applied to listed entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:
• the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or
• the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the group’s
or the parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date
when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current
period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) we identified, including those which had
the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
The following matter was identified by us as the most significant assessed risk of material misstatement:
Revenue recognition
easyHotel has a number of arrangements in place with franchisees and its owned hotels have direct revenue streams generated from their customers.
There is a risk that material misstatements could arise as a result of intentional failure to record income completely and accurately or recognition of income
in the appropriate financial reporting period. Revenue recognition was therefore a principal focus of the audit team’s work.
Note 2 to the financial statements explains the accounting policy for revenue recognition.
In order to respond to this risk we:
• assessed the IT General Control environment applicable to easyHotel’s revenue system that automatically calculates owned hotel revenue
and deferred income, based on bookings and occupancy
• tested a sample of transactions to confirm operation of the system
• reconciled owned hotel revenue to cash received into bank accounts
• confirmed directly with franchisees their revenue generated for the year and the corresponding royalty income attributable to the group
• audited management’s assessment in relation to the period over which upfront fees charged to franchisees are released to the income statement
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Independent auditors’ report continued
to the members of easyHotel plc

Our application of materiality and overview of the scope of our audit

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality which, together with
qualitative considerations, help us to determine the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement areas
and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.
The Group’s business is in a development stage and recent acquisitions and development of sites have resulted in significant assets which are not yet
income generating. In these circumstances we assess materiality for the financial statements as a whole to be £1,310,000 (2017: £520,000) based
on a maximum of 1% of total assets excluding long term deposits.
However, we used a lower specific materiality of £147,000 (2017: £121,000) which represents 5% of adjusted EBITDA for the trading related items
included within the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and related balances in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Performance materiality is the application of materiality at the individual account or balance level set at an amount to reduce to an appropriately
low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality for the financial statements as a whole.
Performance materiality was set at £982,500 (2017: £390,000) which represents 75% (2017: 75%) of the above materiality levels, and £110,250
(2017: £90,750) which represents 75% (2017: 75%) of the above specific materiality levels.
We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above £7,300.
Materiality in respect of the audit of the parent company has been set at a maximum of £1,240,000 (2017: £494,000) using a benchmark of 2%
of gross assets but capped at 95% of group materiality. We consider gross assets to be the most appropriate measure for the basis of materiality
as the parent company is a holding company of various subsidiaries of the group.
The Group includes two trading subsidiaries (easyHotel UK Limited and easyHotel Spain S.L.U) and an entity that holds a property with the
intention of developing a hotel (easyHotel Ireland Limited). In establishing the overall approach to the Group audit, we completed a full scope
audit of easyHotel UK Limited which is considered to be a significant component of the Group, using a materiality of £140,000 (2017: £115,000)
and performed desktop review procedures and specific audit procedures on financial information of easyHotel Spain S.L.U and easyHotel Ireland Limited,
where material to the group financial statements. The Group audit team obtained an understanding of the internal control environment related to
the financial reporting process and assessed the appropriateness, completeness and accuracy of Group journals and other adjustments performed
on consolidation.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except
to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement
in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

• the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
is consistent with the financial statements; and
• the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have
not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or
• the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
• certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 20, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the parent company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the parent company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the parent company
and the parent company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Mark RA Edwards (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
London, UK
5 December 2018

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 September 2018

Note

System sales*
Revenue

4

Cost of sales

2018
£

2017
£

37,313,925

29,672,176

11,253,872
(5,231,963)

Gross profit
Administrative expenses
Operating profit

8,416,257
(3,257,780)

6,021,909

5,158,477

(5,337,832)

(4,477,957)

684,077

680,520

2,958,733

2,300,283

Analysed as:
Adjusted EBITDA**
Depreciation and amortisation
Hotel pre-opening and development costs

(1,502,313)

(831,414)

5

(246,971)

(217,934)

(276,565)

(171,951)

5

(248,807)

(398,464)

684,077

680,520
270,992

Share based payments
Other Adjusting Items
Finance income

8

304,893

Finance expense

9

(116,808)
872,162

860,319

10

(225,658)

(217,458)

646,504

642,861

63,323

(78,958)

709,827

563,903

Profit before taxation
Taxation
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income attributable to equity holders
of the Company
Exchange gain/loss arising on retranslation of foreign operations
Total Comprehensive income attributable to equity holders of the Company

(91,193)

Earnings per share for profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company
Basic (pence)

11

0.5

0.7

Diluted (pence)

11

0.5

0.7

*	System sales is a non-statutory measure and represents the full amount that the customer pays for our owned and operated hotels, as well as in respect of franchisee-owned
and operated hotels (excluding VAT and similar taxes). It also includes initial sign-on fees paid by franchisees to the Company.
**	Adjusted EBITDA represents earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation adjusted for pre-opening costs related to the development of hotels, organisational
restructuring costs, share based payments and other adjusting items (see note 5 for details of all items except share based payments, which can found in note 27). Adjusted EBITDA
is shown on the face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as it reflects the profits from underlying operations only and is the best indicator of easyHotel’s
financial performance.

The notes on pages 35 to 56 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of financial position
as at 30 September 2018
Company number: 09035738

2018

2017

Note

£

£

£

Property, plant and equipment

13

96,259,366

51,141,920

Intangible assets

14

1,151,131

1,014,325

Long-term deposits

15

643,080

£

Assets
Non-current assets

Total non-current assets

636,434
98,053,577

52,792,679

Current assets
Trade and other receivables

16

4,022,560

2,723,821

Cash and cash equivalents

17

41,390,018

33,255,253

Total current assets
Total assets

45,412,578

35,979,074

143,466,155

88,771,753

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables

18

756,826

376,928

Bank borrowings

19

15,749,566

11,666,089

Deferred tax liability

20

418,349

351,488

Total non-current liabilities

16,924,741

12,394,505

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

18

6,057,925

5,804,807

Bank borrowings

19

710,413

360,000

131,560

31,003

Corporate taxation
Total current liabilities

6,899,898

6,195,810

Total liabilities

23,824,639

18,590,315

Total net assets

119,641,516

70,181,438

Equity
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Share capital

21

1,459,545

1,005,000

Share premium

22

113,114,938

64,775,791

Merger reserve

22

2,750,001

2,750,001

Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) reserve

22

(1,067,405)

(1,067,405)

Currency translation reserve

22

Retained earnings

22

Total equity

(15,635)

(78,958)

3,400,072

2,797,009
119,641,516

70,181,438

The financial statements on pages 28 to 56 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 5 December 2018 and were signed
on its behalf by:

Gary Burton
Director

The notes on pages 35 to 56 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 30 September 2018

2018
£

2017
£

872,162

860,319

—

239,615

1,502,313

831,414

276,565

171,951

Finance income

(304,893)

(206,999)

Finance expense

116,808

91,193

2,462,955

1,987,493

183,560

(928,125)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation for the year
Adjustments for:
Loss/(profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation and amortisation
Share based payment charge

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
Cash generated from operations
Corporation tax paid
Net cash flows from operating activities
Interest received
Interest paid
Net cash generated from operations

214,702

1,449,051

2,861,216

2,508,419

(71,123)

(148,667)

2,790,093

2,359,752

346,627

194,743

(488,049)
2,648,671

(337,599)
2,216,896

Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
VAT on investing activities
Net cash used in investing activities

(46,379,646)

(22,709,420)

(1,017,152)

(415,660)

(47,396,799)

(23,125,080)

50,000,000

38,000,000

Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of ordinary share capital
Capitalised costs related to issue of ordinary share capital
Dividends paid
Proceeds in bank loan
Repayment of bank loan
Net cash generated from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
The notes on pages 35 to 56 form part of these financial statements.

(1,206,308)
(320,006)
4,769,921
(360,000)

(1,436,245)
(327,939)
11,890,176
(7,560,000)

52,883,607

40,565,992

8,135,479

19,657,808

33,255,253

13,659,018

(715)
41,390,018

(61,573)
33,255,253
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 September 2018

Note

At 30 September 2016

Share
capital
£

Share
premium
£

Merger
reserve
£

EBT
reserve
£

Currency
translation
reserve
£

Retained
earnings
£

Total
£

625,000

28,592,036

2,750,001

(1,067,405)

—

2,310,136

33,209,768

Profit for the year

—

—

—

—

—

642,861

642,861

Other comprehensive income

—

—

—

—

(78,958)

—

(78,958)

—

—

—

—

(78,958)

642,861

563,903

—

—

—

—

—

171,951

171,951

Total comprehensive income
for the year
Share based payment charge

27

Dividends paid

12

—

—

—

—

—

(327,939)

(327,939)

380,000

36,183,755

—

—

—

—

36,563,755

1,005,000

64,775,791

2,750,001

(1,067,405)

(78,958)

2,797,009

70,181,438

Profit

—

—

—

—

—

646,504

646,504

FX Translation movement

—

—

—

—

63,323

—

63,323

—

—

—

—

63,323

646,504

709,827

—

—

—

—

—

276,565

276,565

—

—

—

—

—

(320,006)

(320,006)

454,545

48,339,147

—

—

—

—

48,793,692

(15,635) 3,400,072

119,641,516

Issue of shares
At 30 September 2017

Total comprehensive income
for the year
Share based payment charge

27

Dividends paid

12

Issue of shares
At 30 September 2018

1,459,545 113,114,938

The notes on pages 35 to 56 form part of these financial statements.

2,750,001 (1,067,405)
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Company statement of financial position
as at 30 September 2018
Company number: 09035738

2018
Note

2017

£

£

£

£

Assets
Non-current assets
Investment

28

3,825,683

3,825,683

Loan to related Companies

28

116,236,147

67,210,995

Loan to Employment Benefit Trust

28

1,300,000

1,300,000

Deferred Tax

20

63,787

20,773

Total non-current assets

121,425,617

72,357,451

Total assets

121,425,617

72,357,451

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables

18

223,522

325,384

Total current liabilities

223,522

325,384

Total Liabilities

223,522

325,384

121,202,095

72,032,067

Total Net Assets
Equity
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Share capital

21

1,459,545

1,005,000

Share premium

22

113,114,938

64,775,791

Other reserves

22

3,575,683

3,575,683

Retained earnings

22

3,051,928

2,675,593

Total equity

121,202,095

72,032,067

The Company has taken up its exemption for filing an individual profit and loss account according to s408 of the Companies Act 2016.
For the year ended 30 September 2018 the Company made a profit of £419,774 (2017: £890,203).
The financial statements on pages 28 to 56 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 5 December 2018 and were signed
on its behalf by:

Gary Burton
Director

The notes on pages 35 to 56 form part of these financial statements.

33

Annual report and accounts 2018

Company statement of cash flows
for the year ended 30 September 2018

2018
£

2017
£

419,774

869,430

276,565

171,951

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation for the year*
Adjustments for:
Share-based payment charge
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

696,339

1,041,381

Increase in amount due from subsidiary **

(552,932)

(1,063,887)

Increase in trade and other payables

(143,407)

22,506

Net cash generated from operations

—

—

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

—

—

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

—

—

Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and cash equivalents

—

—

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

—

—

During the year, the net proceeds as a result of the issue of ordinary share capital of £48,300,000 was paid directly to the subsidiary of the Company.
*

Includes a £1,200,000 non-cash dividend received from its subsidiary easyHotel UK Ltd (2017: £2,000,000).

** Includes a dividend of £320,006 paid by easyHotel UK Ltd on behalf of easyHotel plc (2017: £327,939). The dividend payment is considered as a non-cash item at easyHotel plc.

The notes on pages 35 to 56 form part of these financial statements.
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Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 September 2018

Note

At 30 September 2016

Share
capital
£

Other
reserve
£

Share
premium
£

Retained
earnings
£

Total
£

625,000

3,575,683

28,592,036

1,941,378

34,734,097

Dividends paid

—

—

—

(327,939)

(327,939)

Issue of shares

380,000

—

36,183,755

—

36,563,755

—

—

—

171,951

171,951

Share based payment charge
Total comprehensive income for the year

—

—

—

890,203

890,203

1,005,000

3,575,683

64,775,791

2,675,593

72,032,067

Dividends paid

—

—

—

(320,006)

(320,006)

Issue of shares

454,545

—

48,339,147

—

48,793,692

—

—

—

276,565

276,565

—

—

—

419,774

419,774

1,459,545

3,575,683

113,114,938

3,051,928

121,202,095

At 30 September 2017

Share based payment charge

27

Total comprehensive income for the year
At 30 September 2018

The notes on pages 35 to 56 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 30 September 2018

1 Statement of compliance

easyHotel plc (the “Company”), and its wholly owned subsidiaries (easyHotel UK Ltd, easyHotel Spain S.L.U. and easyHotel Ireland Ltd), is an international
owner, developer, operator and franchisor of “easyHotel” branded hotels. The Company is a public limited company whose shares are listed on AIM
under the ticker symbol EZH and is incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom. The address of the registered office is 52 Grosvenor Gardens,
London SW1W 0AU.
The consolidated and parent company accounts are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union, taking into account IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) interpretations and those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable
to companies reporting under IFRS.

2 Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation
The accounts are prepared based on the historical cost convention. The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years
presented in these accounts, unless otherwise stated.
The Company has taken up its exemption for filing an individual profit and loss account according to section 408 of the Companies Act 2006.
The Company’s profit or loss for the financial year has been approved by the Directors in accordance with section 414 (of the Companies Act 2006)
(total comprehensive income for the year ended 30 September 2018 of £419,774 and total comprehensive income of £890,203 for the year ended
30 September 2017).
The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. Details on going concern are provided in the Statement of Responsibilities on page 20.
All amounts are presented in Pound Sterling (GBP, £), except where otherwise indicated.
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated accounts incorporate those of easyHotel plc and its subsidiaries for the years ended 30 September 2017 and 2018. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company, using consistent accounting policies. On acquisition
of its subsidiary, easyHotel UK Ltd, merger accounting was the basis of consolidation.
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
Intragroup balances and transactions and any unrealised gains and losses arising from intragroup transactions are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated accounts.
Investment in subsidiary
easyHotel plc has an investment in easyHotel UK Ltd (a wholly owned subsidiary) of £3,825,683 (2017: £3,825,683). This investment is held at cost
less any reasonable provisions for impairment against the investment of which there are currently none.
easyHotel UK Ltd has an investment in easyHotel Spain S.L.U. (a wholly owned subsidiary) of £7,583,664 (2017: £7,583,664). This investment is held
within easyHotel UK Ltd at cost less any reasonable provisions for impairment against the investment of which there are currently none.
easyHotel UK Ltd has an investment in easyHotel Ireland Ltd (a wholly owned subsidiary) of £1 (2017: £Nil). This investment is held within easyHotel UK Ltd
at cost less any reasonable provisions for impairment against the investment of which there are currently none.
The investment eliminates out for the purpose of the consolidation.
Employee Benefit Trust (EBT)
The EBT’s assets (other than investments in the Company’s shares), liabilities, income and expenses are included on a line-by-line basis in the
consolidated financial statements, and its investment in the Company’s shares is deducted from equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position as if they were treasury shares.
The EBT is not consolidated in the Company’s own financial statements but the Company recognises any transactions between itself and the EBT
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy.
Foreign currency
The primary economic environment in which a subsidiary operates determines its functional currency. The consolidated accounts of easyHotel are
presented in Sterling, which is the Company’s functional currency and the Group’s presentation currency.
Transactions arising in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Sterling using the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and the gains or losses on
translation are included in the income statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Sterling
at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the transactions were effected.
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2 Significant accounting policies continued

Foreign currency continued
On consolidation the results of overseas operations are translated into Sterling at rates approximating to those ruling when the transactions took place.
All assets and liabilities of overseas operations are translated at the rate ruling at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on translating the
opening net assets at opening rate and the results of overseas operations at actual rate are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the currency translation reserve.
System sales
System sales arises from the sale of goods and the provision of services where these activities give rise to economic benefits received and receivable
by the Company and its franchisees. System sales is the full amount that the customer pays for our owned and operated hotels, as well as fees in respect
of franchisee-owned and operated hotels (excluding VAT and similar taxes), including initial sign-on fees paid by franchisees to the Company.
Revenue
Revenue arises from the provision of services where these activities give rise to economic benefits received and receivable by the Company on its own
account and result in increases in equity. Revenue is the full amount that the customer pays for our owned and operated hotels, plus fees that we charge
to our franchisees (excluding VAT and similar taxes).
Provided the amount, if applicable, can be measured reliably and it is probable that the Company will receive the consideration, revenue for services
is recognised as follows:

Owned – primarily derived from hotel operations, including the rental of rooms and ad hoc utility services sales from owned hotels operated under
the “easy” brand name. Revenue is recognised when rooms are occupied and ad hoc utility services are provided.
Franchise fees – received in connection with the licence of the Company’s brand name, usually under long-term contracts with the hotel owner.
The Company charges franchise royalty fees and processing fees as a percentage of room revenue and in some cases receives an upfront fee on the
grant of a franchise. Revenue is earned and recognised when the customer has occupied the room at the franchisee’s operated hotel accommodation.
Upfront fees are generally recognised immediately as an initial sign-on income, with portions relating to legal, contractual, marketing or similar items
recognised over the period from signing to opening. Where upfront fees specifically relate to exclusivity, these fees are recognised over the franchisee
exclusivity period.
Consideration received in advance for which the revenue recognition criteria above have not been satisfied are deferred until such time as the
revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied.
Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA represents earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation adjusted for pre-opening costs related to the development
of hotels, organisational restructuring costs, share based payments and other adjusting items.
Intangible assets
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and subsequently amortised so as to write off their carrying value, less their residual value, on a
straight line basis over the expected useful lives of the assets as follows:
Website and systems development costs – over 5 years
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Intangible assets are
reviewed for indicators of impairment where their value is lower than their recoverable value. Any impairment in value is charged to the statement
of comprehensive income.
Property, plant and equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and, where
appropriate, provision for impairment in value.
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation is provided on all other items of property, plant and equipment so as to write off their carrying value, less their
residual value, over their expected useful economic lives. It is provided at the following rates:
Building core – over 50 years
Building surface finishes – over 20 years
Plant and machinery – over 8–15 years
Furniture and equipment – over 3–5 years
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Property, plant and equipment
are reviewed for indicators of impairment where their value is greater than their recoverable value. Any impairment in value is charged to the statement
of comprehensive income.
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2 Significant accounting policies continued

Financial assets
The Company has not classified any of its financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as available for sale or as held to maturity.
The Company’s accounting policy for loans and receivables is as follows:
The Company’s loans and receivables comprise trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the Company statement of financial position.
These assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods and services to customers (e.g. trade receivables) but also incorporate other types of contractual monetary asset.
They are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition or issue and are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment.
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, cash in transit, restricted cash, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.
Impairment provisions are recognised when there is objective evidence (such as significant financial difficulties on the part of the counterparty or default
or significant delay in payment) that the Company will be unable to collect all of the amounts due under the terms receivable, the amount of such a
provision being the difference between the net carrying amount and the present value of the future expected cash flows associated with the impaired
receivable. For trade receivables, which are reported net, such provisions are recorded in a separate allowance account with the loss being recognised
within administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. On confirmation that the trade receivable will not be collectable,
the gross carrying value of the asset is written off against the associated provision.
Financial liabilities
The Group classifies its financial liabilities depending on the purpose for which the liability was acquired. The Group has not classified any of its financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
The Group’s accounting policy for other financial liabilities is as follows:
Trade payables and other short-term monetary liabilities are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
Taxation
The current tax is based upon the taxable profit for the period together with adjustments, where necessary, in respect of prior periods. The Group’s
asset or liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the financial year end date.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised where the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the consolidated statement of financial position
differs from its tax base.
Recognition of deferred tax assets is restricted to those instances where it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the difference
can be utilised.
The amount of the asset or liability is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected
to apply when the deferred tax liabilities/(assets) are settled/(recovered).
Share capital
Financial instruments issued by the Group are classified as equity only to the extent that they do not meet the definition of a financial liability.
The Group’s ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments.
Dividends
Dividends are recognised when they become legally payable. In the case of interim dividends to equity shareholders, this is when they are paid by the
Directors. In the case of final dividends, this is when approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting (AGM).
Segmental reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The chief operating
decision maker has been identified as the Board of Directors.
Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings, if any, pending their expenditure on qualifying assets, is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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2 Significant accounting policies continued

Provisions
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amounts that have arisen as a result of past transactions and are discounted at a pre-tax
rate reflecting current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
Standards, amendments and interpretations to published standards not yet effective
There are a number of standards and interpretations which have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board that are effective in
future accounting periods that group has decided not to adopt early. The most significant of these:
• IFRS 9: Financial Instruments and IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (both mandatorily effective for periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018, the Group continues to assess the impact of these standards. The Group has not yet formed a conclusion; and
• IFRS 16: Leases (mandatorily effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019).
Adoption of IFRS 16 will result in the Group recognising right of use assets and lease liabilities for all contracts that are, or contain, a lease. For leases
currently classified as operating leases, under current accounting requirements the Group does not recognise assets or liabilities, and instead spreads
the lease payments on a straight-line basis over the lease term, disclosing in its annual financial statements the total commitment.
The Group is not as advanced in its implementation of IFRS 16, in the last six months the Board has decided it will apply the modified retrospective in IFRS 16,
and therefore will only recognise leases on the balance sheet as at 1 January 2019. In addition, it has decided to measure right of-use-assets by reference
to the measurement of the lease liability on that date. This will ensure there is no immediate impact of net assets on that date. At 30 September 2018,
operating lease commitments amounted to £13,033,611, which is not expected to be materially different to the anticipated position at 30 September 2019
or the amount which is expected to be disclosed at 30 September 2018.
Instead of recognising an operating expense for its operating lease payments, the Group will instead recognise interest on its lease liabilities and
amortisation on its right-of-use assets. This will increase reported EBITDA by the amount of its current operating lease cost, which for the year ended
30 September 2018 was approximately £13,033,611.
The Group does not expect any other standards issued by the IASB, but not yet effective, to have a material impact on the Group. The following is a list
of other new and amended standards which, at the time of writing, had been issued by the IASB but which are effective in future periods. The amount
of quantitative and qualitative detail to be given about each of the standards will, much like the amount of detail to be given about IFRSs 9, 15 and 16,
depend on each entity’s own circumstances.
• IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Translations and Advance Consideration (effective 1 January 2018);
• Amendments to IFRS 2 classification and Measurement of Share-based payment Transactions (effective 1 January 2018);
• Amendments to IFRS 4: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (effective 1 January 2018);
• Amendments to IAS 40: Transfers of Investment Property (effective 1 January 2018);
• Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014–2016 cycle dealing with matters in IFRS 1 First-time Adoption and IAS 28 Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures (effective 1 January 2018);
• IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Positions (effective 1 January 2019);
• Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective 1 January 2019);
• Amendments to IAS 28:Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (effective 1 January 2019); and
• IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (effective 1 January 2021).
Critical accounting estimates and judgements
The Group makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the future, actual
experience may differ from these estimates and assumptions. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
(a) Impairment of assets
The Group is required to consider assets for impairment where such indicators exist using value in use calculations or fair value estimates. The use
of these methods may require the estimation of future cash flows and the choice of a discount rate in order to calculate the value in use or fair value.
(b) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their useful lives. Useful lives are based on the management’s estimates for the period that the
assets will generate revenue, which, along with their estimated residual values, are periodically reviewed for continued appropriateness. Changes to
estimates can result in significant variations in the carrying value and amounts charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
specific periods. More details including carrying values are included in note 13.
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2 Significant accounting policies continued

Critical accounting estimates and judgements continued
(c) Taxation
The Group is subject to income tax and significant judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes. During the ordinary course
of business, there are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. As a result, the Group recognises tax liabilities
based on estimates of whether additional taxes and interest will be due. These tax liabilities are recognised when the Group believes that certain positions
are likely to be challenged and may not be fully sustained upon review by tax authorities. The Group believes that its accruals for tax liabilities are
adequate for all open audit years based on its assessment of many factors including past experience and interpretations of tax law. This assessment relies
on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of complex judgements about future events. To the extent that the final tax outcome of these
matters is different than the amounts recorded, such differences will impact income tax expense in the period in which such determination is made.

3 Financial instruments – risk management

The Group and the Company are exposed through their operations to the following financial risks:
• credit risk;
• interest rate risk;
• foreign exchange risk; and
• liquidity risk.
In common with all other businesses, the Group and the Company are exposed to risks that arise from their use of financial instruments. This note describes
the Group and the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks and the methods used to measure them. Further quantitative
information in respect of these risks is presented throughout these financial statements.
There have been no substantial changes in the Group and the Company’s exposure to financial instrument risks, their objectives, policies and processes
for managing those risks, or the methods used to measure them from previous periods, unless otherwise stated in this note.
Principal financial instruments
The principal financial instruments used by the Group and the Company, from which financial instrument risk arises, are as follows:
• trade and other receivables;
• cash and cash equivalents;
• trade and other payables; and
• loans and borrowings.
A summary of the financial instruments held by category is provided below:
Group
2018
£

Group
2017
£

Company
2018
£

Company
2017
£

41,390,018

33,255,253

—

—

216,076

93,591

—

—

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Amounts due from franchisees
Other Receivables
Accrued income
Related party loan
Long-term deposits
Rental Guarantee
Total financial assets classified as loans and receivables

—

1,004,939

—

—

567,477

—

—

—

34,542

16,001

—

—

—

—

117,536,147

67,210,995

643,080

636,434

—

—

49,833

—

—

—

42,901,026

35,006,218

117,536,147

67,210,995

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

3,231,941

3,191,029

223,522

325,384

Bank borrowings

16,459,978

12,026,089

—

—

Total financial liabilities classified as amortised cost

19,961,920

15,217,118

223,522

325,384
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3 Financial instruments – risk management continued

Financial instruments measured at fair value
No financial instruments are measured at fair value; accordingly, no hierarchy information is presented.
General objectives, policies and processes
The Board has overall responsibility for the determination of the Group and the Company’s financial instrument risk management objectives and policies
and, whilst retaining ultimate responsibility for them, it has delegated the authority for designing and operating processes that ensure the effective
implementation of the objectives and policies to the Group’s finance function. The Board receives reports from the Group’s finance function through
which it reviews the effectiveness of the processes put in place and the appropriateness of the objectives and policies it sets.
The overall objective of the Board is to set policies that seek to reduce risk as far as possible without unduly affecting the Group’s competitiveness
and flexibility. Further details regarding these policies are set out below.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group and the Company if a customer or a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations. On the basis that customers primarily prepay for hotel occupancy, and after carefully reviewing the financial performance and forecasts
of counterparties to financial instruments as well as holding security over their trading accounts, the Group and the Company’s exposure to credit risk
from trade and other receivables is considered insignificant.
Credit risk also arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions. For banks and financial institutions, only
independently rated parties with minimum rating “A” are accepted.
The Group and the Company do not enter into derivatives to manage credit risk.
The maximum amount of credit risk exposure is reflected in the carrying amount of financial assets held at the year end, excluding cash and cash
equivalents, of £1,780,639 (2017: £1,114,531).
Market risk
Market risk arises from the Group and the Company’s use of interest bearing, tradable and foreign currency financial instruments. It is the risk that
the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in interest rates (interest rate risk) or foreign exchange
rates (currency risk).
The Company has no fair value and cash flow interest rate risk to disclose.
Interest rate risk
The Group is partially funded through bank borrowings. During the financial year, the Group extended its committed facility to £22,000,000
(an increase of £10,000,000 on the original facility). Following the last four quarterly repayments of £90,000 each, the outstanding balance
at 30 September 2018 was £11,280,000. Any amount borrowed bears interest at 2.5% above LIBOR.
As at 30 September 2018, the balance drawn down was €6,311,910 on the Group’s €8,250,000 euro-denominated mortgage facility to finance the
construction of its new hotel in Barcelona. Any amount borrowed bears interest at 2.25% above one year EURIBOR.
A 50 basis point increase in the interest rates would, all other variables kept constant, have decreased the profit before tax by £93,230 for the period
ended 30 September 2018, while a 50 basis point decrease would have increased profit before tax by the same amount.
Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk arises because the Group has franchisees located outside the UK whose functional currency is not the same as the functional
currency of the Group, and the Group takes bookings on their behalf in foreign currencies. The Group maintains bank accounts in these currencies
to provide a natural hedge.
Foreign exchange risk also arises when the Group enters into transactions denominated in a currency other than its functional currency. The volume
of such transactions is not considered sufficient to warrant hedging the risk exposure.
The Group’s policy is, where possible, to settle liabilities denominated in foreign currency (primarily the euro) with the cash generated from its own
operations in that currency.
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3 Financial instruments – risk management continued

Foreign exchange risk continued
The Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities were denominated in the following currencies:
EUR
£

USD
£

CHF
£

AED
£

Total
£

30 September 2018
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

713,538

125,427

16,340

—

855,305

Trade and other receivables

126,383

—

20,477

29,278

176,138

Total financial assets

839,922

125,427

36,817

29,278

1,031,444

Trade and other payables

453,798

—

108,482

—

562,280

Total financial liabilities

453,798

—

108,482

—

562,280

Financial liabilities

30 September 2017
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

567,127

65,493

61,505

—

694,125

Trade and other receivables

1,022,161

—

1,869

28,457

1,052,487

Total financial assets

1,589,288

65,493

63,374

28,457

1,746,612

Trade and other payables

573,840

—

108,482

—

682,322

Total financial liabilities

573,840

—

108,482

—

682,322

Financial liabilities

The effect of a 10% strengthening of the Pound Sterling at the reporting date on the foreign denominated financial instruments carried at that date would,
all variables held constant, have resulted in a decrease in total comprehensive income for the period and decrease of net assets of £12,182 (2017: £28,205).
A 10% weakening in the exchange rate would, on the same basis, have increased total comprehensive income and net assets by £12,182 (2017: £28,205).
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises from the Group and the Company’s management of working capital and the finance charges and principal repayments on its debt
instruments. It is the risk that the Group and the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting their financial obligations as they fall due.
The Group and the Company’s policy is to ensure that they will always have sufficient cash to allow them to meet their liabilities when they become due.
To achieve this aim, the Group and the Company finance their operations through a mix of equity and borrowings. The Group and the Company’s
objective is to provide funding for future growth and achieve a balance between continuity and flexibility through their bank facilities and intergroup
loans. The Group has a £22,000,000 sterling bank facility in place, of which £12,000,000 has been drawn and a €8,250,000 euro facility, of
which €6,311,910 has been drawn.
The Board receives cash flow projections on a regular basis as well as information regarding cash balances. At the end of the financial year, these
projections indicated that the Group and the Company expected to have sufficient liquid resources to meet their obligations under all reasonably
expected circumstances.
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3 Financial instruments – risk management continued

Liquidity risk continued
The following table sets out the contractual maturities (representing undiscounted contractual cash flows) of financial liabilities:

Group

Up to
3 months
£

Between
3 and 12 months
£

Between
1 and 2 years
£

Between
2 and 5 years
£

Over
5 years
£

1,214,585

1,364,875

—

—

652,480

183,150

1,250,275

1,615,005

31,095,916

—

1,397,735

2,615,150

1,615,005

31,095,916

652,480

At 30 September 2018
Trade and other payables
Bank borrowings
Total
At 30 September 2017
Trade and other payables

2,933,688

38,752

—

—

218,589

183,150

549,450

732,600

23,506,071

—

3,116,838

588,202

732,600

23,506,071

218,589

Up to
3 months
£

Between
3 and 12 months
£

Between
1 and 2 years
£

Between
2 and 5 years
£

Over
5 years
£

Trade and other payables

—

—

—

—

—

Total

—

—

—

—

—

Trade and other payables

—

—

—

—

—

Total

—

—

—

—

—

Bank borrowings
Total

Company

At 30 September 2018

At 30 September 2017

More details in regard to the line items are included in the respective notes:
• Trade and other payables – note 18.
Capital disclosures
The Group and the Company monitor capital which comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital, share premium and retained earnings).
The Group and the Company’s objectives when maintaining capital are:
• to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders; and
• to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk.
The Group and the Company set the amount of capital they require in proportion to risk. The Group and the Company manage their capital structure
and make adjustments to it in light of the changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group and the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

4 Revenue

2018
£

2017
£

Owned hotel revenue

9,075,454

6,489,245

Franchised hotel revenue

1,810,918

1,812,159

367,500

114,853

11,253,872

8,416,257

Revenue arises from:

Other income
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5 Operating profit and adjusted EBITDA

2018
£

2017
£

The following have been included in arriving at operating profit before tax:
Auditors’ remuneration includes:
Company audit fees

(15,000)

(15,000)

Subsidiary audit fees

(42,500)

(34,500)

Fees for audit related assurance services

(20,000)

(20,000)

Total auditors’ remuneration

(77,500)

(69,500)

2018
£

2017
£

—

133,060

Other adjusting items from reportable segments include:
Other adjusting items include:
Net franchise termination proceeds
Recruitment fees

(124,540)

(51,000)

Legal and other costs

(124,213)

(167,414)

(54)

(63,627)

Abortive fees
Systems restructuring
(Loss)/profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment*
Total of other adjusting items
*

—
—

(9,868)
(239,615)

(248,807)

(398,464)

(248,807)

(398,464)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment relates to the part-closure of operations at the Old Street hotel following an adverse planning result.
2018
£

2017
£

Hotel pre-opening and development:
Pre-opening operational costs

(246,971)

(217,934)

Total hotel pre-opening and development costs

(246,971)

(217,934)

Hotel pre-opening and development costs relate to expenses incurred or income received in running a property prior to commencement of trading as
a hotel or otherwise.
Adjusted EBITDA is shown on the face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as it reflects the profits from underlying operations only
and is the best indicator of easyHotel’s financial performance.
2018
£

2017
£

Expenses by Nature
Marketing Expenses

(397,446)

(297,414)

Professional Fees

(389,971)

(427,138)

Operating lease expenses

(366,497)

(10,917)
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6 Staff and key management

The aggregate amounts payable to people employed by the Group (including Directors) during the year were as follows:
2018
£

2017
£

Wages and salaries

3,090,869

2,274,488

Social security costs

293,922

271,754

3,384,791

2,546,242

The average number of employees during the year in hotel operations was 54 (2017: 32).
The average number of employees during the year in head office was 21 (2017: 15).
The aggregate amounts payable to people employed by the Company (including Directors) during the year were as follows:
Company
2018
£

Company
2017
£

Wages and salaries

1,352,935

816,657

Social security costs

179,434

108,618

1,532,370

925,275

The average number of employees during the year was eight (2017: six).
Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group,
and are considered to be the Directors of the Group. Amounts disclosed below include social security costs.

Aggregate emoluments

2018
£

2017
£

1,159,364

1,110,517

In addition there were total employer’s National Insurance expenses of £101,706 (2017: £126,957).
Total share based payments made to key management personnel were £177,276 (2017: £160,372).
The remuneration of the highest paid Director amounted to £401,939 (2017: £464,793). Details by Director can be seen in the Remuneration Report
(page 24).

7 Segment information

The Group has two main reportable segments:
• Owned properties – This division is involved in hotel operations carried out in the Group’s owned hotels and properties.
• Franchising – This division involves the Group’s franchised hotel operations, in connection with the licence of the Group’s brand name.
Factors that management used to identify the Group’s reportable segments
These segments are considered on the basis of different products and services. They are managed separately because each business requires
different management strategies and poses different business risks.
Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies.
The Group evaluates performance on the basis of adjusted EBITDA.
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7 Segment information continued

Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities continued
Segment assets exclude tax assets. Segment liabilities exclude tax liabilities. Even though loans and borrowings arise from finance activities rather than
operating activities, they are allocated to the segments based on relevant factors (e.g. funding requirements). Details are provided in the reconciliation
from segment assets and liabilities to the Group position.
Owned
properties
£

Franchising
£

Total
£

Total revenue from external customers

9,442,954

1,810,918

11,253,872

Adjusted EBITDA

3,910,856

1,097,977

5,008,833

Profit before taxation

2,969,996

1,055,215

4,025,211

138,975,913

2,272,609

141,248,521

21,455,702

(1,708,099)

(23,163,801)

30 September 2018
Revenue

Segment assets
Segment liabilities
Other
Additions to non-current assets
Disposals of non-current assets
Finance income
Finance cost
Depreciation and amortisation

22,244,516

—

22,244,516

—

—

—

358,074

—

358,074

(141,010)

—

(141,010)

(1,502,313)

—

(1,502,313)

30 September 2017
Revenue
Total revenue from external customers

6,604,098

1,812,159

8,416,257

Adjusted EBITDA

3,239,960

1,042,417

4,282,377

Profit before taxation

2,632,860

1,042,417

3,675,277

Segment assets

85,213,653

2,608,410

87,822,063

Segment liabilities

(15,048,156)

(2,335,555)

(17,383,711)

Additions to non-current assets

22,852,910

—

22,852,910

Disposals of non-current assets

(239,615)

—

(239,615)

Finance income

206,999

—

206,999

(91,193)

—

(91,193)

(831,414)

—

(831,414)

Other

Finance cost
Depreciation and amortisation
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7 Segment information continued

Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities continued
Reconciliation of reportable adjusted EBITDA, profit or loss, assets and liabilities to the Group’s corresponding amounts is shown below:
2018
£

2017
£

Adjusted EBITDA of reportable segments

5,008,833

4,282,377

Adjusted EBITDA of corporate office

(2,050,100)

(1,982,094)

2,958,733

2,300,283

4,025,211

3,675,277

(2,380,705)

(2,026,609)

(248,807)

(158,849)

Hotel pre-opening and development costs

(246,971)

(217,934)

Share based payments

(276,565)

(171,951)

Total adjusted EBITDA
Profit before income tax
Total profit of reportable segments
Corporate office expenses and interest
Other adjusting items (see note 5)

Disposals of non-current assets
Profit before tax per statement of comprehensive income

—

(239,615)

872,162

860,319

141,246,929

87,822,063

1,593

1,643

2,217,632

948,047

143,466,154

88,771,753

Assets
Total assets for reportable segments
Cash in Employee Benefit Trust
Corporate office assets
Total assets per statement of financial position
Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments
Corporation tax

(23,163,801)

(17,383,711)

(131,561)

(31,003)

Corporate office liabilities

(110,929)

(824,113)

Deferred tax liabilities

(418,349)

(351,488)

(23,824,640)

(18,590,315)

Total liabilities per statement of financial position
Geographical information

2018
£

2017
£

United Kingdom

9,575,363

7,209,316

Europe

1,619,136

1,073,830

59,372

133,111

11,253,872

8,416,257

82,618,031

44,828,465

Revenue by location

Rest of the world
Total non-current assets by location
United Kingdom
Spain

15,435,546

7,964,214

Total

98,053,577

52,792,679
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8 Finance income

2018
£

2017
£

358,074

206,999

Finance income
Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost
Foreign exchange gain/(loss)
Total finance income recognised in profit or loss

9 Finance expense

(53,181)

63,993

304,893

270,992

2018
£

2017
£

509,891

356,165

(393,083)

(264,972)

Finance expense
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Amount capitalised *
Total finance expense recognised in profit or loss
*

116,808

91,193

2018
£

2017
£

170,696

55,674

Interest expense attributable to construction works has been capitalised to property, plant and equipment.

10 Income tax
Current tax expense
Current tax on profits for the year
Adjustment in respect of prior period
Overseas tax
Total current tax

(13,676)

4,087

1,101

—

158,121

59,761

106,831

158,455

Deferred tax expense
Deferred tax charge for the year
Adjustment in respect of prior period

(28,102)

19,547

Rate change

(11,192)

(20,305)

Total income tax expense

225,658

217,458

The reasons for the difference between the actual tax charge for the year and the standard rate of corporation tax in the United Kingdom applied to
profits for the year are as follows:
2018
£

2017
£

872,162

860,319

Expected tax charge based on the standard rate of United Kingdom corporation tax at the domestic rate
of 19% (2017: 19.5%)

165,711

167,762

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

165,243

65,341

(48,074)

(23,826)

Profit before tax

Tax losses carried forward
Deferred tax on share options

(9,291)

4,852

Prior year current tax adjustment

Deferred tax not recognised

(13,676)

4,087

Prior year deferred tax adjustment

(28,102)

19,547

Overseas tax
Difference in overseas tax rates
Effect of change in tax rate
Total income tax expense

1,101
3,938
(11,192)
225,658

—
—
(20,305)
217,458
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11 Earnings per share
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue, excluding those held by the Employee Benefit Trust,
used as the denominator in calculating basic earnings per share

2018
Number

2017
Number

126,896,794

97,709,247

142,913

120,747

127,039,707

97,829,994

Options granted under the Employee Share Save Plan
Weighted average number of ordinary share and potential ordinary shares used as the denominator in
calculating diluted earnings per share

Options granted to executives under the company’s Performance Share Plan are not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share as they
don’t have a material impact on the diluted earnings per share.
Earnings consists of profit for the period attributable to the shareholders amounting to £646,504 (2017: £642,861).

12 Dividends

Interim cash dividend of 0.07p per ordinary share (£101,380) was paid by the Group during the period under review (2017: £109,312).
Final cash dividend of 0.15p per ordinary share (£218,626) is proposed by the Group during the period under review (2017: £218,625).

13 Property, plant and equipment

Land and
building
core
£

Building
surface
finishes
£

Plant and
machinery
£

Furniture and
equipment
£

Total
£

At 30 September 2016

27,186,342

3,620,802

682,003

422,363

31,911,510

Additions

19,792,918

416,306

175,915

1,183,992

21,569,131

Disposals

—

(228,330)

(69,030)

(21,240)

(318,600)

Cost

Foreign exchange differences

33,314

—

—

—

33,314

47,012,574

3,808,778

788,888

1,585,115

53,195,355

Additions

44,903,634

134,359

211,815

1,024,693

46,274,501

Disposals

—

—

—

—

—

76,073

—

—

—

76,073

91,992,281

3,943,137

1,000,703

2,609,808

99,545,929

At 30 September 2016

589,453

540,105

102,436

216,442

1,448,436

Charge for the year

306,261

161,099

66,160

149,007

682,527

At 1 October 2017

Foreign exchange differences
At 30 September 2018
Accumulated depreciation

Foreign exchange differences
Disposals

1,457

—

—

—

1,457

—

(39,958)

(24,160)

(14,867)

(78,985)

At 1 October 2017

897,171

661,246

144,436

350,582

2,053,435

Charge for the year

610,827

185,209

95,021

342,782

1,233,839

Disposals

—

—

—

—

—

(711)

—

—

—

(711)

1,507,287

846,455

239,457

693,364

3,286,563

At 30 September 2016

26,596,889

3,080,697

579,567

205,921

30,463,074

At 30 September 2017

46,115,403

3,147,532

644,452

1,234,533

51,141,920

90,484,994

3,096,682

761,246

1,916,444

96,259,366

Foreign exchange differences
At 30 September 2018
Net book value

At 30 September 2018

The property, plant and equipment listed above are held as security against bank facilities referred to in note 19.
As at 30 September 2018 there are £23,262,595 (2017: £9,201,187) assets relating to assets under the course of construction included within the above table.
The cost of the assets will be depreciated once the asset is complete and available for use.
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14 Intangible assets

Website and
system
development
costs
£

Total
£

Cost
At 1 October 2016

180,719

180,719

Additions

1,013,779

1,013,779

At 1 October 2017

1,194,498

1,194,498

Additions

469,070

469,070

Foreign exchange differences

(63,790)

(63,791)

1,599,778

1,599,778

31,286

31,286

Amortisation charge for the year

148,887

148,887

At 1 October 2017

180,173

180,173

At 30 September 2018
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 October 2016

Amortisation charge for the year
At 30 September 2018

268,474

268,474

448,647

448,647

Net book value
At 30 September 2016

149,433

149,433

At 30 September 2017

1,014,325

1,014,325

At 30 September 2018

1,151,131

1,151,131

2018
£

2017
£

643,080

636,434

15 Long-term deposits
Security deposits

There is currently a €500,000 security deposit relating to the euro-denominated mortgage facility, which will be fully re-imbursed upon the Barcelona
Hotel reaching pre-defined trading targets.
There is currently a €221,652 (£198,098) security deposit that has been given to the city council as a guarantee over construction works that will be
occurring during the construction of the Barcelona hotel. These monies are expected to be reimbursed after completion.

16 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Amounts due from franchisees
Accrued income
Total financial assets other than cash and cash equivalents
classified as loans and receivables
Prepayments
VAT receivable
Other receivables
Total trade and other receivables

Group
2018
£

Group
2017
£

Company
2018
£

Company
2017
£

216,076

93,591

—

—

—

1,004,939

—

—

34,542

16,001

—

—

250,618

1,114,531

—

—

831,363

274,203

—

—

2,323,269

1,305,201

—

—

617,310

29,886

—

—

4,022,560

2,723,821

—

—

4,022,560

2,723,821

—

—

Classified as follows:
Current portion
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16 Trade and other receivables continued

There is no material difference between the net book value and the fair values of trade and other receivables due to their short-term nature.
An analysis of the Group’s trade and other receivables classified as financial assets by currency is provided in note 3.
Other classes of financial assets included within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets.

17 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances with original maturity less than 90 days:

Cash at bank and in transit

Group
2018
£

Group
2017
£

Company
2018
£

Company
2017
£

41,390,018

33,255,253

—

—

Group
2018
£

Group
2017
£

Company
2018
£

Company
2017
£

1,790,687

697,963

—

—

An analysis of the Group’s cash by currency is provided in note 3.

18 Trade and other payables

Trade payables
Other payables

341,609

30,489

—

—

Amounts payable to franchisees in future

1,099,645

998,962

—

—

Accruals

2,282,633

1,463,615

223,522

325,384

Total financial liabilities classified as financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost

5,514,574

3,191,029

223,522

325,384

151,958

56,636

—

—

Other taxation and social security
VAT payable

—

174,872

—

—

Bookings in advance

963,057

2,554,677

—

—

Deferred income

185,162

204,521

—

—

6,814,752

6,181,735

223,522

325,384

Total trade and other payables
Classified as follows:
Non-current portion
Current portion

756,826

376,928

—

—

6,057,925

5,804,807

223,522

325,384

There is no material difference between the net book value and the fair values of current trade and other payables due to their short-term nature.
Maturity analysis of the financial liabilities, classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost, is as follows (the amounts shown are
undiscounted and represent the contractual cash flows):
2018
£

2017
£

Up to three months

3,384,866

2,972,440

Between three and twelve months

1,372,882

—

756,826

218,589

5,514,573

3,191,029

More than twelve months
Total
An analysis of the Group’s trade and payables classified as financial liabilities by currency is provided in note 3.
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19 Bank borrowings

The carrying value and fair value of borrowings are as follows:

Non-current bank loan
Current bank loan

Group
2018
£

Group
2017
£

Company
2018
£

Company
2017
£

15,749,566

11,666,089

—

—

710,413

360,000

—

—

In November 2016, the Group completed the refinancing of its existing £7,200,000 bank facility with a new five year facility due 2021 of £12,000,000
amortising at 3% per annum and bearing interest at LIBOR +2.50%.
The facility is secured by a fixed charge over all of easyHotel UK Ltd’s property, plant and equipment (note 13), as well as a floating charge over all
other assets of easyHotel UK Ltd, as per the bank’s debenture terms.
During the prior year, the Group also arranged a €8,250,000 euro-denominated mortgage facility, bearing interest at 2.25% above one year EURIBOR.
There is currently a €500,000 security deposit (note 15) that has been provided over relating to the euro-denominated mortgage facility, which will
be fully re-imbursed upon the Barcelona Hotel reaching pre-defined trading targets.

20 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 19% (2017: 19.5%).
2018
£

2017
£

351,488

193,792

Group
At the beginning of the year
Adjustment in respect of the prior year

(28,102)

Recognised in comprehensive income

106,135

Rate change
At the end of the year

(11,172)
418,349

19,547
158,454
(20,305)
351,488

Company
At the beginning of the year

(20,773)

—

Recognised in comprehensive income

(48,074)

(23,826)

5,060

3,053

(63,787)

(20,773)

Rate change
At the end of the year

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of all tax losses and other temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets where the
Directors believe it is probable that these assets will be recovered.
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the period are shown below.

52

Financial statements

easyHotel plc

Notes forming part of the financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 September 2018

20 Deferred tax continued

Details of the deferred tax liability/(asset) and amounts recognised in profit or loss are as follows:
Accelerated
capital
allowances
£

Share
options
£

At 1 October 2016

180,410

—

Impact of rate change on opening balance

(23,418)

Prior year adjustment

18,544

Comprehensive income debit

Group

Other (Credited)/Debited
temporary
to consolidated
and
statement of
deductible
comprehensive
differences
income
£
£

13,382

193,792

3,053

60

(20,305)

—

1,003

19,547

182,749

(23,826)

(469)

158,454

At 30 September 2017

358,285

(20,773)

13,976

351,488

Impact of rate change

(16,259)

5,060

26

(11,173)

Prior year adjustment
Comprehensive income debit
At 30 September 2018

Company

(28,102)

—

—

(28,102)

154,457

(48,074)

(247)

106,136

468,381

(63,787)

13,755

418,349

Accelerated
capital
allowances
£

Other (Credited)/Debited
temporary
to consolidated
and
statement of
deductible
comprehensive
differences
income
£
£

Share
options
£

At 1 October 2016

—

—

—

—

Impact of rate change

—

3,053

—

3,053

Comprehensive income credit

—

(23,826)

—

(23,826)

At 30 September 2017

—

(20,773)

—

(20,773)

Impact of rate change

—

5,060

—

5,060

Comprehensive income credit

—

(48,074)

—

(48,074)

At 30 September 2018

—

(63,787)

—

(63,787)

21 Share capital

Ordinary shares of 1p each

Authorised
2018
Number

2017
Number

2018
£

2017
£

145,954,546

100,500,000

1,459,545

1,005,000

Allotted, called up and fully paid

Ordinary shares of 1p each

2018
Number

2017
Number

2018
£

2017
£

145,954,546

100,500,000

1,459,545

1,005,000

During the financial year, the Group issued 45,454,546 new ordinary shares (2017: 38,000,000) via a placing, raising £50.0m (£48.3m after expenses).
Following Admission, the number of ordinary shares in issue is 145,954,546.
As at 30 September 2018, 1,125,000 shares were held by the Employee Benefit Trust (2017: 1,125,000).
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22 Reserves

The following describes the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity:
Reserve

Description and purpose

Share premium

Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value, net of share issue costs.

Merger reserve

Difference between nominal value of shares issued to effect the merger and capital reserves of the subsidiary.

Other reserve

Difference between the net assets of the subsidiary acquired and the nominal value of shares issued during
the merger.

EBT reserve

Shows the value of easyHotel plc shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust at cost.

Currency translation reserve

Records the exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of non-sterling
functional currency subsidiaries into the Group’s reporting currency of sterling.

Retained earnings/(accumulated losses)

All other net gains and losses and transactions with owners (e.g. dividends) not recognised elsewhere.

23 Subsidiaries

easyHotel UK Ltd (a company incorporated in the United Kingdom) is a wholly owned subsidiary of easyHotel plc and is consolidated into the
accounts of easyHotel plc.
easyHotel Spain S.L.U. (a company incorporated in Spain) is a wholly owned subsidiary of easyHotel UK Ltd and is consolidated into the accounts
of easyHotel plc.
easyHotel Ireland Ltd (a company incorporated in the Republic of Ireland) is a wholly owned subsidiary of easyHotel UK Ltd and is consolidated into
the accounts of easyHotel plc.

24 Related party transaction

Trading transactions
During the year the Group entered into various transactions with related parties in the normal course of its business. Prices and terms of payment are
approved by the Group’s management. All significant related party transactions and balances are listed below:
2018
£

2017
£

274,141

222,541

20,000

15,000

—

—

Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Royalties paid
Brand protection costs
Outstanding balance at year end
Amount owed to related parties
Services between related parties were made at market related prices.
Amounts recognised in profit or loss in 2018 were as a result of transactions with easyGroup Limited.
The Group has not made any provision for bad or doubtful debts in respect of related party debtors nor has any guarantee been given or received
regarding related party transactions.
On 24 June 2014 easyHotel entered into a 50-year global brand licence agreement with easyGroup Limited.
In December 2013 easyGroup Limited granted easyHotel a lease of the Croydon property for a term of 999 years. The lease was granted to
easyHotel upon payment of a premium of £1,626,000 by easyHotel to easyGroup Limited and provides for a nominal initial rent of £25 per annum.

25 Contingencies and commitments

There are no contingencies or commitments of a material nature at the date of approval of these financial statements that the Directors believe are
necessary to draw attention to.

26 Events after the reporting date

80 Old Street will shut from December 2018 and to reopen as an 89-bedroom hotel and 15,500 sq ft of office accommodation in the second half
of 2019. A central freehold site in Bristol has been acquired to potentially develop a 145-bedroom freehold easyHotel. Planning permission has been
granted for the development of a new purpose-built 180-room hotel in Oxford, on a 25-year lease. easyHotel has announced the development of a
new 154-bedroom franchised hotel will be developed at Amsterdam Schiphol Airport, the main international airport in the Netherlands.
There are no other matters that occurred between the reporting date and the date of approval of these financial statements that the Directors believe
are necessary to draw attention to.
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27 Share option scheme

Performance Share Plan
The easyHotel Performance Share Plan is a long term incentive scheme for the Executive Directors and certain senior managers. Share options are granted,
which vest after 32 months, subject to both the employee remaining employed by easyHotel and the achievement of a variety of performance conditions.
The first awards were granted in January 2016; further awards were granted in January 2017 and January 2018.
ShareSave Plan
The easyHotel Employee ShareSave Plan was launched during the financial year. The first options under the Plan were granted on 27 July 2017
and all UK employees of easyHotel plc and its subsidiaries who had been in continuous employment for 3 months as at that date were eligible to join.
Employees enrolled in the plan enter into a savings contract for 3 years, during which they save a fixed sum each month between £5 and £500. At the
maturity date of 1 September 2020, participants can choose to use the sum saved to buy shares in easyHotel, at the exercise price fixed up front.
The movement in the number of share options outstanding under either scheme during the year was as follows:

Outstanding at 1 October 2016
Forfeited/lapsed during the period
Granted during the period
Outstanding at 30 September 2017
Exercisable at 30 September 2017

Outstanding at 1 October 2017
Forfeited/lapsed during the period
Granted during the period

Performance
Share Plan
Number of
options

Employee
Share Save Plan
Number of
options

846,583

Nil

Nil

Nil

490,059

120,747

1,336,642

120,747

Nil

Nil

Performance
Share Plan
Number of
options

Employee
Share Save Plan
Number of
options

1,336,642

120,747

(55,615)

(62,463)

409,542

121,616

Outstanding at 30 September 2018

1,690,569

179,900

Exercisable* at 30 September 2018

646,705

Nil

*

Subject to closed period restrictions.

The Group recognised total expense of £276,565 (2017: £171,951) related to the share options in 2018; this was determined using the Black Scholes
model, using the following assumptions:

Share price at grant date
Weighted average exercise price
Risk-free rate
Dividend yield
Volatility

Performance
Share Plan
Options
granted
2016

Performance
Share Plan
Options
granted
2017

Performance
Share Plan
Options
granted
2018

89.3p

89.3p

116.0p

Employee
Employee
Share Save Plan Share Save Plan
Options
Options
granted
granted
2017
2018

101.0p

116.0p

71p

—

—

88.4p

92.8p

3.00%

3.00%

3.00%

3.00%

3.00%

0.35%

0.35%

0.30%

0.33%

0.33%

38.31%

38.31%

28.38%

23.42%

23.42%

A modification was made in January 2017 to the 2016 Performance Share Plan awards, increasing the weighted average exercise price from nil to 71p.
The assumptions used in the Black Scholes model for the 2016 awards were updated as at the date of the modification. Specifically, share price at grant
date was updated from 91p to 89.3p and volatility was updated from 36.41% to 38.31%.
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28 Further notes to the Company balance sheet

Investment in subsidiary
On 14 May 2014 the Company acquired 100% of the share capital of easyHotel UK Ltd. easyHotel plc had an investment in easyHotel UK Ltd (a wholly
owned subsidiary) as at 30 September 2018 for an amount of £3,825,683 (2017: £3,825,683). This investment is held at cost less any reasonable
provisions for impairment against the investment, of which there are currently none. The investment eliminates out for the purpose of the consolidation.
easyHotel UK Ltd is a company incorporated in England and Wales, with its registered address being 52 Grosvenor Gardens, London SW1W 0AU,
United Kingdom.
In November 2015, easyHotel UK Ltd acquired 100% of easyHotel Spain S.L.U. easyHotel UK Ltd had an investment in easyHotel Spain S.L.U. (a wholly
owned subsidiary) as at 30 September 2018 for an amount of £7,583,664 (2017: £7,583,664). This investment is held at cost less any reasonable
provisions for impairment against the investment, of which there are currently none. The investment eliminates out for the purpose of the consolidation.
easyHotel Spain S.L.U. is a company incorporated in Spain, with its registered address being Avenida de la Gran Via 22, 08902 Hospitalet de Llobregat, Spain.
In September 2018, easyHotel UK Ltd acquired 100% of easyHotel Ireland Ltd. easyHotel UK Ltd has an investment in easyHotel Ireland Ltd. (a wholly
owned subsidiary) as at 30 September 2018 for an amount of £1 (2017: £Nil). This investment is held at cost less any reasonable provisions for impairment
against the investment, of which there are currently none. The investment eliminates out for the purpose of the consolidation.
easyHotel Ireland Ltd is a company incorporated in Ireland, with its registered address being Benburb Street, Dublin Ireland.
Loan to related company
easyHotel plc had a loan due from easyHotel UK Ltd (a wholly owned subsidiary) as at 30 September 2018 for an amount of £116,236,147
(2017: £67,210,995). The loan is unsecured and interest free and is repayable on demand. However, easyHotel plc does not expect to demand
repayment of the loan within the next twelve months.
The loan eliminates out for the purpose of the consolidation.
Loan to Employee Benefit Trust
The Company made a loan of £1,300,000 to the Employee Benefit Trust for the purchase of ordinary shares in easyHotel plc in accordance with
provisions set out in the easyHotel plc 2015 Performance Share Plan.
Pursuant to a trust deed dated 25 June 2014 and made between the Company and Sanne Fiduciary Services Limited, the Company established the
Employee Benefit Trust. The Employee Benefit Trust is a discretionary trust which is structured so as to constitute a trust for the benefit of employees
and former employees of easyHotel, their spouses, former spouses, civil partners, former civil partners and dependants within the meaning of section
86 of the Inheritance Act 1984 and also to fall within the definition of an “employees’ share scheme” in section 1166 of the Companies Act 2006.
It is intended that the Employee Benefit Trust will be funded by the Company to purchase ordinary shares from time to time in the market, which will be
used to satisfy all options and other rights granted, for existing employees’ share plans or any other employees’ share plans established in the future,
under the easyHotel plc 2015 Performance Share Plan.
In accordance with current institutional investor guidelines, the deed establishing the Employee Benefit Trust provides that the prior approval of shareholders
must be obtained before more than 5% of the Company’s share capital at any one time may be held within it.
The loan is unsecured and interest free and is repayable on demand. However, easyHotel plc does not expect to demand repayment of the loan
within the next twelve months.
As at 30 September 2018, 1,125,000 shares were held by the Employee Benefit Trust (2017: 1,125,000).

29 Operating Leases

Operating Leases – lessee
The Group maintains a mixed portfolio of owned and leased properties. The terms of property leases vary from country to country, although they all
tend to be tenant repairing with rent reviews after 5 years and many have break clauses.
The total future value of minimum lease payments is due as follows:

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

2018
£

2017
£

698,668

—

2,794,672

—

9,540,271

—

13,033,611

—
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30 Notes supporting statement of cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the statement of cash flows comprises:
2018
£

2017
£

41,390,018

33,255,253

41,390,018

33,255,253

2018
£

2017
£

1,694,050

926,444

Current
borrowings

Total

11,666,089

360,000

12,026,089

4,769,921

(360,000)

4,409,921

23,969

—

23,969

Cash at bank available on demand (Note 3)

Significant non-cash transactions from investing activities are as follows:

PP&E purchased but not yet paid at year end

Net debt reconciliation
At 1 October 2017
Cash flows

Non-current
borrowings

Amortisation of fees
Foreign exchange
Reclassification
At 30 September 2018
At 1 October 2016
Cash flows
Debt paid directly to deposit holder
Foreign exchange
Reclassification
At 30 September 2017

(710,413)

710,413

—

15,749,566

710,413

16,459,979

—

7,200,000

7,200,000

11,890,176

(7,560,000)

4,330,176

440,956

—

440,956

54,957

—

54,957

(720,000)

720,000

—

11,666,089

360,000

12,026,089
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Moments. They’re
what life’s about.
A wedding, the Cup Final, that big meeting. A bad date
turning good. Or the quiet bite that turned into the night
of the year.
When you can proudly say “I was there” and “I was part
of that”. Because it’s not about enjoying events on a
48-inch plasma screen. Or having two slices of ham
at the continental breakfast.
It’s about waking up, getting out there and living your life.
Making the most of each day. Moment by moment.
You want to kick-start your day from an easy base and be
right in the thick of it, not a taxi ride away. All you need is
a friendly face to point you in the direction of a good local.
And somewhere to rest your head, before doing it all again.
Before you catch that next moment. We’ll take care of making
sure you’re well rested. You take care of going out, exploring
the city, meeting the locals and getting to the heart of it.

easyHotel
let’sGo

52 Grosvenor Gardens
London
SW1W 0AU

